SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
A (EE)RAERAF"

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability ABREZZMA L ZER QT )
( Stock Code B #31X55 : 8076)

Annual Report £k

2018

*For identification purposes only &5l



CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE”STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a high investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Sing Lee Software (Group)
Limited (the
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given

“Company”) (the “Directors”) collectively and
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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Corporate Information
ANCIE-¢=
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Chairan’s Statement
FEHRE

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Sing Lee
Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the audited financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overall Business of the Group in 2018

With the further development of the business strategy that
focuses on a core business and two complementary products, the
Group's earnings hit a record high. While the earnings increased
by 443% in 2016 and achieved a year-on-year growth of 125%
in 2017, earnings in 2018 saw a year-on-year increase of 41%
at RMB22,203,000.

Driven by the normalised structural reform and the ongoing
market correction of the financial market, the continuous
growth of capital products revenue not only reflects customers’
recognition of the Group’s products, but also highlights the clear
path of and our effort in product research, development and
marketing. In the past year, with our industry-leading products,
new products like data mart were well received by commercial
banks in pilot cities, resulting in a more diversified offerings
aligned with the new economic structure. Through further
collaboration in capital business with leading domestic companies
and city commercial banks, such as Bank of Beijing, Bank of
Shanghai, Bank of Jiangsu, China Zheshang Bank and Huishang
Bank, the Group established a sales model based on a mixed
business portfolio.

Our long-term cooperation in payment plus service with
banks has met the demand for new-generation products and
innovation. Meanwhile, actively promoted by our partners, the
payment methods supported by the Group became even more
diversified, and the development of non-inductive payment
method marked an important step. In 2018, all hotels under the
Home Inns Group adopted this payment method. In light of the
scale of the payment market, though new payment methods
have emerged, the market still has immense growth potential.
With our in-depth industry knowledge accumulated over 27
years, business transformation and innovative mindset, we will
continue to expand the market.
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Chairman’s Statement

ITR®E

On the other hand, the Group further expanded the offline
market by deepening the value added services, strengthening
service content and developing merchant service outsourcing.
Previously serving only the Zhejiang branch of ICBC, the Group
served various branches in 13 provinces in 2018. Based on
this foundation, the Group started to cooperate with banks
in initiating projects targeting merchants and cardholders, and
consolidate the businesses, so that banking outsourcing service
products and payment products were integrated to form a
business portfolio.

Apart from products, the growing sales team was also crucial for
the continuous growth of sales. After business consolidation, the
Group witnessed a much higher growth than in previous years,
resulting in a reasonable increase in costs.

The normalised structural reform of financial market in China
will bring new opportunities and a bigger market. Therefore,
the output ratio of the business strategy that focuses on a
core business and two complementary products may be fine-
tuned from time to time in the long run to adapt to the market
changes. It is our strategy to strengthen our capital products and
introduce the new payment concept to customers through our
dynamic business portfolio while expanding the merchant service
outsourcing business.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

As we further implement our strategy, the operational and
maintenance platform and “Bank-School Express” evolved from
traditional operations remain our main sources of big data. With
the help of these products, the Group will consolidate the big
data, behavioral big data, and the online and offline businesses
to form a new OFFLINE TO ONLINE (O20) model. We also plan to
extend the collaborative model with banks to other commercial
banks. Meanwhile, the business portfolio will be better aligned
to the overall development of the financial environment.

The Group will continue to implement stringent cost control

while pursuing further sales growth in order to achieve a win-
win situation.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the board of Directors, | would like to express
sincere gratitude to all shareholders for their support and to all
employees for their loyalty and dedication. In addition, | would
also like to extend heartfelt appreciation to our customers,
partners, suppliers and bankers for their trust and support.

Hung Yung Lai
Chairman

20 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERWw&k DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development and sales
of information and network technologies and services to the
financial industry in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Revenue of the Group comprises of:

2018
year”), the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
RMB114,088,000, an
the year ended 31
RMB79,168,000).

For the year ended 31 December ("the financial

increase of 44% as compared to

December 2017 (2017: approximately

Bt 7% [0 jER
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BREEEHeRmENEE  BER B LR
ir%o
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RFEE]D) AEEHGSHERANAEARE
114,088,0007C * W EF B E G NH44% (= F
—+F 4 ARET9,168,0007T) °

Revenue

EERE
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARBTFT
Sales of software products HEMMFE® 10,936 12,525
Sales of related hardware products SEEMEBEGE R 6,831 4,174
Provision of technical support services 1R R 2 B AR 96,321 62,469
114,088 79,168

The increase in the turnover of the Group was mainly attributable
to the increase of 54% in the revenue of the Group’s provision
of technical support services when compared to the same period
of last year. The total revenue for the year 2018 mainly came
from the provision of technical support services. The source of
total revenue for the year 2018 was the same as that for the
year of 2017.

Cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2018 is increased
by 46% to approximately RMB60,066,000 (2017: approximately
RMB41,218,000). Cost of sales increased in line with business
activities. Gross profit margin was 47% (2017: 48%) which
remained stable. The Group has been implementing the strict
cost control and making the best efforts to keep the current
gross profit margin.
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Manaement Discussion and AnIysis
EEENWE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Contd)

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2018
is decreased by 15% to approximately RMB13,730,000 (2017:
approximately RMB16,157,000). The decrease in administrative
expenses were mainly due to the decrease in recognition of
equity-settled share-based payment during the period when
compared to the same period of last year. Distribution and selling
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2018 is approximately
RMB11,505,000 (2017: approximately RMB10,768,000), not much
movement when compared to the same period of last year. Other
income mainly included refund of value added tax and interest
income; and other gains and losses mainly included exchange
differences and fair value changes in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

Research and development expenses for the year ended
31 December 2018 is increased by 14% to approximately
RMB6,881,000 (2017: approximately RMB6,054,000). The
increase in research and development costs was mainly due to
the Group allocated more resources on researching the new
technology aiming at increasing our market share.

2018
approximately

Finance costs for the year ended 31 December
is approximately RMB1,832,000 (2017:
RMB2,069,000), not much movement when compared to the

same period of last year.

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 is increased by
41% to approximately RMB22,203,000 (2017: approximately
RMB15,798,000). Increase in revenue and our effective cost
control measures are the main factors leading to the profit
increased.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)
During the vyear ended 31 December 2018, the Company
recorded equity-settled share-based payment of approximately
RMB820,000 (2017: approximately RMB5,508,000). The equity-
settled share-based payment for the year ended 31 December
distribution
and selling expenses and administrative expenses amounted to
RMB78,000, RMB86,000 and RMB656,000 respectively.

2018 was allocated between the cost of sales,

("Singlee
Technology”), a subsidiary of the Company, was established in
Hangzhou, PRC,
Enterprise and is therefore entitled to 15% preferential tax rate

Hangzhou Singlee Technology Company Limited

is regarded as a High and New Technology

for PRC enterprise income tax. No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made as the Group had no estimated
assessable profits arising from Hong Kong for the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: Nil). No provision for PRC enterprise
income tax during the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017
as the assessable profits has been wholly absorbed by tax losses
brought forward from previous years or some subsidiaries had
no assessable profits.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, reversal of impairment
on trade receivables amounted to approximately RMB86,000
(2017: approximately RMB1,077,000). The Group adopted legal
and appropriate measures to collect debts and reduce loss
through, amongst others, phone calls, facsimile, letters, visits,
interviews, as well as legal actions as the final resort. The Group
will also actively improve its receivables collection policy to
enhance cash flows.

Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly the Group’s

buildings, leasehold improvements, computer and related

equipment and motor vehicles. Not much movement when

compared to the same period of last year.
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Manaement Discussion and AnIysis
EEENWE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Contd)

Intangible assets comprise mainly the Group’s capitalised
development costs. Increase of 150% is mainly attributable to
the Group's further investments in the intangible assets.

Trade receivables and contract assets increased in line with
business activities during the fourth quarter of current year.
During the year under review, the trade receivables and contract
assets turnover (the average of the trade receivables balance and
contract assets at the beginning and the end of the year divided
by the total revenue of the year times 365 days) decreased by
3 days to 184 days (2017: 187 days). The Group’s customers
are generally granted with credit period ranging from 120-180
days. The Group is comfortable with the quality of the trade
receivables and contract assets and will continue to exercise due
care in managing the credit exposure.

Borrowings amounted to approximately RMB77,435,000 as
at 31 December 2018 (2017: approximately RMB64,964,000),
representing an increase of 19%, which is mainly attributable
to the increase in unsecured director’s loans during the year,
partly offset by repayment of unsecured director’s loans. The
borrowings would be used for general corporate purposes
including working capital.

We will continue striving our best to increase sales and
strengthen our cost control measures. With the products of our
Group becoming more mature in the market and the effective
cost control, we expect that financial results of the group would
be further improved in the coming year.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Group incurred capital expenditure of RMB10,859,000
(2017: RMB11,328,000) during the year ended 31 December
2018, mainly attributable to the additions in intangible assets
developed internally.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DM

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
RATIO

The operating expenditures of the Group are funded by cash
flow from operations and borrowings. The Group has adequate
sources of funds to meet its future working capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2018,
equivalents denominated

the Group held cash and cash
in RMB, US dollars and HK
dollars, amounted to approximately RMB45,648,000 (2017:
approximately RMB35,034,000). The Group’s current ratio,
based on total current assets over total current liabilities,
as at 31 December 2018 was approximately 2 times (2017:

approximately 3 times).

The Group’s net cash inflow for the year ended 31 December
2018 approximately amounted to RMB10,614,000 (2017:
approximately RMB11,848,000).

RBES  MBARREELELE

AEELZEZETRBRR/AEBEEZRETK
ALRBE AEEHRBERAZE SRR
LEERZHTH -

RIE—N\FE+_A=+—H8 AEEFEA
RE ZXRETIHNRSERASEEVNA
AR #45,648,000(ZFE—tF AR
35,034,0007C) c RZE—NF+ A=+ —
H K%Zum@ttt(ﬁiﬁuﬁ@ﬁg?@gﬁ
BRUMBAEAEAE) OR2E(ZE—t5F:
#3£E) -

HE_Z—-N\F+-_A=+—BHILFE K&
ER e R AFELHAEARE10,614,0007T (=
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At 31 December 2018, the Group had the following outstanding E’\\:ZQ NF+ZA=1+—8  A&EEBEHKE
borrowings: BEERAT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR F T
Fixed-rate borrowings: EBEBEE:
Unsecured loans from a director EEWEEEE 66,435 53,964
Secured bank borrowings BHEMIETEE 11,000 11,000
77,435 64,964
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEER W R D

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
RATIO (Contd)

RBET UBRERKEEAGHR
(&)

The borrowings’ contractual maturity dates are as follows: BEANIBHBENT
2018 2017
—E-N\E —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AR F T
Within one year —F LR 28,131 13,492
Between one to two years —F L ETBBMRE 5,157 15,456
Between two to five years MENLETEBBAF 13,137 8,084
More than five years FE 31,010 27,932
77,435 64,964
The loans from a director of approximately RMB51,995,000 & ={EE# A RKS51,995,0000(-ZF—+H4F:

(2017: RMB41,774,000) are denominated in HK dollars, other
borrowings are denominated in the functional currency of the
respective group entity.

During the year 2017, the Group entered into two revolving loan
facility agreements with a bank with a total credit amounts of
RMB11,000,000. The maturity date of the two revolving loan
facilities is on 25 June 2020 and 31 July 2020 respectively. These
two revolving loan facilities were fully utilised as at 31 December
2018.

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the year (2017:
Nil).

The gearing ratio of the Group, based on total liabilities over
total assets, as at 31 December 2018 was approximately 67%
(2017: approximately 77%). The gearing ratio improvement is
the result of very disciplined and focused management over
working capital. The Group remains confident that gearing ratio
can further improve going forward.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE
During the year, our directors and option holders other
than the directors of the Company exercised 2,545,000 and
11,185,000 share options respectively granted in April 2017. As
at 31 December 2018, the total number of issued ordinary shares
of the Company was 878,160,000 shares (2017: 864,430,000
shares).

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

The group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established and maintained sufficient risk
management procedures to identify and control various types of
risk within the organisation and the external environment with
active management participation and effective internal control
procedures in the best interest of the Group and its shareholders.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's revenue segmented on types of goods or services
delivered or provided:

a) Sales of software products

b) Sales of related hardware products

c)  Provision of technical support services

For the year ended 31 December 2018, provision of technical
support services remained the principal source of revenue of the

Group. This services revenue accounted for 84% (2017: 79%) of
Group revenue.
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RAFE AEEZEERIFEARAESS
AMITETAEBR - —+FWMAR T
2,545,0000% %11,185,000% B & #& - ¥ =&
—N\E+ZA=+—H ARABFHET2E
B M A4 878,160,000 (=& — + ¢
864,430,0000%) °
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REBRAFE  TEEARBRLEHBR
AR A o

Rk EE

AEECEYIAREFEENRRERER @ &
NEBEBZRBRGLERE R ZNIEEREF

UBEEEZEGHRBAANBRIINERERFZS
BER TeaAKERERRZZEMNZ -

7 BE

AEEREBERNERIMREERRSEE D
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b) HEMBEMNEM

o RERMSERS
RBEE-F-N\FT_A=+—"HLEFE &
L&S‘iﬂ]?ﬂﬁﬁ&i‘%%%ﬁ%lI%H&)\Xﬁ°

ARSI A KRG A E B E X FEHN8A% (= F
—+tF:79%) °
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
provision of technical support services revenue and sales of
related hardware products revenue increase of 54% and 64%
respectively as compared to the year ended 31 December 2017.
Increase in contracts is the main factor leading to the revenue
increased. The sale of software products revenue decreased by
13% compared with the same period of last year.

Segment results grew 77% to approximately RMB30,792,000
(2017: approximately RMB17,414,000) mainly due to operational
efficiency.

Details of segment information are presented for the Group as
disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 735 employees
(2017: 562 employees), including both the PRC and Hong
Kong employees. Remuneration and bonus policy are basically
determined by the performance of the individual employees
and financial results of the Group. Total staff costs for the
year amounted to approximately RMB46,884,000 (2017:

approximately RMB30,010,000).

The Group adopted a share option scheme, details of which were
set out in the “Report of the Directors”.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, certain properties of the Group
located in Hangzhou with an aggregate net carrying amount
of approximately RMB10,539,000 (2017: approximately
RMB11,086,000) were used to secure the banking facilities.

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i & (@) BB ER A =

D ERER (E)

HEZZ—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE £&
B 715 12 B 1T 2 98 AR IS U AN 65 65 48 A R 14
EmBA DRI EF R EIEINL54%M64% -
TERARHEEANENMAE - HERHGE
M ABREFRATEKIZ% °

XEREERR »BEELATI%EY

AR 30,792,000 (Z 2 —+F - HARE
17,414,0007T) ©
AEBHDBERFBIRGEYBEHRERN
516

EBEE&ER

RWZZE—-NE+-_A=+—8 KEBEEAET35
ZET(ZE—+E:562%ET) HHAT
BEAEES AEEME RIEAKETIE

BAAMEBEIREERMNKREMETE -HEZT
—N\E+Z A=+ ALFEZEIRANA
AR #46,884,000t(ZE —tF  HARE
30,010,0007T) °

AEBERM—IREBRE S
[(EEHEE]-

'§$|ﬁuﬁ/ﬁﬁ

EERA

F—fo¢+—H:+fE-$%lﬁ%m
MERE FES L4 A K¥10,539,0007T (=
—t & HJ AR ¥11,086,00070) A JF%%E
FAERITEE M E M o




16

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE DM

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND EXPECTED SOURCE OF FUNDING

Details of the Group’s future plans for material investments or
capital assets and their expected source of funding have been
stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 August 2001
under the sections headed “Statement of Business Objectives”
and "Reasons for the New Issue and Use of Proceeds”
respectively.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATION

The Group's revenue generating operations are mainly transacted
in RMB. The Directors consider the impact of foreign exchange
exposure to the Group is minimal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2017: Nil).

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Our commitment to protect the environment is well reflected
by our continuous efforts in promoting green measures
and awareness in our daily business operations. The Group
encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. The
Group adheres to the principle of Recycling and Reducing. It
implements green office practices such as make use of water
efficiently, double-sided printing and copying, setting up
recycling bins, promoting using recycled paper and reducing
energy consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical
appliance. The Group is also using office equipment carrying
Energy Label issued by the Electrical and Mechanical Services

Department which save energy in the offices.

The Group will review its environmental practices from time
to time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly
measures and practices in the operation of the Group’s
businesses to move towards adhering the 3Rs — Reduce, Recycle

and Reuse and enhance environmental sustainability.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS
During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no

incidence of non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations of the places in which the Group operates that which

has significant impact on the business operations of the Group.
RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable assets.
Thus the Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews
the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with business partners and bank enterprises to
achieve its long-term goals. Accordingly, our senior management
have kept good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and
shared business update with them when appropriate. During the
year, there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its business partners or bank enterprises.

The Group collaborates with responsible suppliers to provide
quality goods with competitive pricing. To this end, the Group
implements policies on supply chain management to ensure
fair suppliers selection procedures. The suppliers should fulfill
the requirements in the supplier screening procedures and the
Group's experienced employees ensure those goods received
from the suppliers meet the Group’s expectation.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and
business prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s
businesses. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.

Market Risks

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects
ability to meet business objectives arising from the movement
in market prices, like foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Foreign Exchange Rates Risk

The Group's assets and liabilities were denominated in Renminbi,
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") and United States dollars (“USD"), in
view of the potential HKD and USD exchange rate fluctuation the
Group undertake foreign exchange rate risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure when the
need arises.

Interest Rate Risk

For interest-sensitive products and investments, the Group
analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis and
considers managing this risk in a cost-effective manner when

appropriate, through variety of means.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont’d)
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that the Group will be unable to
meet its obligations when they fall due because of an inability to
obtain adequate funding or liquidate assets. In managing liquidity
risk, the Group monitors cash flows and maintains an adequate
level of cash and cash equivalent to ensure the ability to finance
the Group’s operations and reduce the effects of fluctuation
in cash flows. The management of the Group monitors the
utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with all the loan
limits or covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing
facilities.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically
rests with every function at divisional and departmental levels.

Key functions in the Group are guided by their standard

operating procedures, limits of authority and reporting

framework. Our management will identify and assess key
operational exposures regularly so that appropriate risk response

can be taken.
Investment Risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of occurrence
of losses relative to the expected return on any particular
investment. Key concern of investment framework will be
balancing risk and return across different investments, and thus
risk assessment is a core aspect of the investment decision
process. Proper authorisation system has been set up and
detailed analysis will be made before approving investments.
Regular updates on the progress of the investments of the Group

would be submitted to the Board.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Contd)
Manpower and Retention Risk

The Group may face the risk of not being able to attract
and retain key personnel and talents with appropriate and
required skills, experience and competence which would meet
the business objectives of the Group. The Group will provide
attractive remuneration package to suitable candidates and
personnel.

Business Risk

Performance of the Group’s core business will be affected
by various factors, including but not limited to economic
conditions, performance of property markets in regions where
our investments locate, the performance of the fund managers
for our invested funds, which would not be mitigated even with
careful and prudent investment strategy and strict procedure.

Cyber Attack and Security Risk

The Group could be impacted negatively if it sustains
cyberattacks and other data security breaches that disrupt
its operations or damage its reputation. For example, various
information and sensitive or confidential data relating to its
operations may be subject to attack from hackers and other
malicious software programs that attempt to exploit any
security vulnerability in its system; Sophisticated software and
applications that it produces may contain “bugs” that could
unexpectedly interfere with the operation of the system or may
present unidentified security risk; Misappropriation of sensitive
or confidential data about its customers could lead the Group
to loss of reputation, and exposure to potential litigation and
liability. The Group will continue to enhance IT security and
security information awareness and comply with mandatory
privacy and security standards and protocols imposed by law,

regulation, industry standards, or contractual obligations.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont’d)
Intellectual Property Risk

The Group could suffer if it does not develop and protect its
own intellectual property. The Group will take full advantage
of legal protections by applying for software copyright. For
licensed Intellectual Property, take appropriate steps to assure its
continued validity.

PROSPECTS OF NEW PRODUCTS

Please refer to the “Chairman’s Statement” for a discussion on
this.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE
GROUP

Year ended

Year ended

TERBRTABPREEE)
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Year ended  Year ended Year ended

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

—E-N\f T+t ZT-X§ ZT-8F ZT-NF

+=A +=H +=H +=H +=H

=t+—H =+—H =+—A =+—f =+—H

LFE EFE EFE EFE HEE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFrT AREFT AREFT AREFT

Revenue HERA 114,088 79,168 64,557 55,819 48,908
Profit attributable to

shareholders R 31 3 22,203 15,798 7,028 1,294 571

Total assets LEBE 152,558 107,905 75,030 56,131 42,004

Total liabilities BELE (102,174) (82,555) (71,772) (60,711) (53,574)

Net assets (liabilities) BE(BRE)FE 50,384 25,350 3,258 (4,580) (11,570)

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i & (£E) R ER A 7

/!
/




] 22 ’\;, \

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung, Yung Lai, aged 74, the Chairman of our Group and
the director of Strategic Development Committee. Mr. Hung,
who graduated from Shanghai Conservatory of Music, is also
among the founders of the Group. He is in possession of more
than 30 years’ company management and strategy programming
experience and over 20 years’ successful experience in managing
high-tech companies; hence he is familiar with the China business
management and marketing planning. Mr. Hung is now in charge
of the Group’s macrostrategy and the enterprise’s development.

Mr. Cui, Jian, aged 65, a Director of our Group. Mr. Cui is one
of the founders of Hangzhou Singlee Software Co., Ltd. and has
been working for our Group since its founding in 1993. Mr. Cui
is responsible for the investment programming of the Group.
Before joining the Group, he used to work for China Hangzhou
Automatization Research Institute and Hangzhou Huayuan
Computer Application Research Institute as director and president

of their Developing Departments.

Mr. Hung, Ying, aged 49, a Director and Vice Chairman of our
Group. He had been the deputy general manager of Hangzhou
Singlee Technology Co., Ltd. and Hangzhou Singlee Software
Co., Ltd of the Group from April 2007 to April 2011.
joining the Group, he had worked as the marketing director and

Prior to

general manager in Beijing San Ding Ti Lian Network Technology
Company Limited from May 2001 to December 2005. Mr. Hung
graduated in information, social and management sciences
(majoring in business administration) from University of Paisley
and obtained an EMBA from Peking University. Mr. Hung has
several years of experiences in management, and is specialised
in market planning and sales. Mr. Hung is the son of Mr. Hung

Yung Lai, the chairman and executive director of the Company.
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Mr. Lin, Xue Xin, aged 43, a Director and Chief Executive Officer
of our Group. Mr. Lin has 18 years of experience in the field
of computer technology. He obtained his bachelor degree of
Computer Science and Technology from People’s Liberation Army
Polytechnic University in 2009. Mr. Lin joined the group since
2000 and was appointed as the general manager of Hangzhou
Singlee Technology Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company, in May
2011. Between 2010 and 2012, Mr. Lin was also employed as a
technology expert in UnionPay.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Pao, Ping Wing, s, aged 71, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the company in December
2003. In the past years, he had been actively serving on
government policy committees and authorities, including those
relating to town planning, urban renewal, public housing and
environment matters. He has been appointed as a Justice of
the Peace of Hong Kong since 1987. He was an ex-urban
councilor. He obtained a Master of Science Degree in Human
Settlements Planning and Development from the Asian Institute
of Technology in Thailand in 1980. He was elected as one of the
Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1982 and one
of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of the World in 1983.
Mr. Pao is a Hon. Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Housing.
He is an independent non-executive director of Oriental Press
Group Limited, Capital Environmental Holdings Limited, Zhuzhou
CRRC Times Electric Co., Ltd., Soundwill Holdings Limited and
Maoye International Holdings Limited, all of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Mr.
director of the Group, is the fellow member of the Hong Kong

Thomas Tam, aged 71, an independent non-executive

Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was the founding
partner of Wongs & Tam, Certified Public Accountants, a public
accounting firm in Hong Kong, set up in 1973 and is now a
consultant of the accounting firm.
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Mr. Lo, King Man, Jrsss,B8s, aged 81, an independent non-
executive director of the Group. Mr. Lo began his career in
academic administration at the University of Hong Kong and
became deputy director of the former Hong Kong Polytechnic
in 1986. He was also appointed director of the Hong Kong
Academy for performing arts in 1993. Mr. Lo is the Justice of
Peace in Hong Kong, and he has an extensive record of public
service. He has also served on the governing or executive bodies
of numerous educational and cultural organizations. He was
appointed as independent non-executive director of Chow Sang
Sang Holding Int’l Ltd. in September 2004.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. Kehan Xu, aged 46, Chairman Adviser of the Company,
Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited. Dr. Xu is the co-founder &
Managing Director of Dawnrays Biotech Capital (Asia) Limited.
Dr. Xu has been served as the CFO and Executive Director of
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (2348 HK). Dr. Xu
has been served as the executive vice president and CFO of the
Company, Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (8076 HK).

Kehan received a PhD in Management from Mays Business School
at Texas A&M University, a DBA from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, and a MBA (Investments) from University of Miami.
Dr. Xu publishes on top tier academic journals (Journal of
Management Accounting Research, Journal of Management
and Academy of Management Perspectives). His research

areas include entrepreneurship, behavioral decision-making,
management control tightness, brand portfolio, and trust in IT-

enabled approval systems.
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Mr. Tong, Tsz Kwan, aged 39, is the Chief Financial Officer and
the Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Tong is the member of
the Anxi County, Fujian Province Committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. Mr. Tong is the Vice Chairman
of Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations Limited, East
Kowloon. Mr. Tong is also the Council Member of Hong Kong
Fukien Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Tong is also the Chairman of
the Youth Committee of the Hong Kong Quanzhou Clans United
Association, the Vice General Secretary of the 5th Committee
of Quanzhou Overseas Friendship Association and director of
the An Kwei Clans Association (H.K.) Limited. He is External
Advisor of the Department of Accountancy and Law of Hong
Kong Baptist University and advisor of Business Association,
Business and Economics Association, the Hong Kong University
Students’ Union. He is the Education Committee member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Tong holds
a Master of Business Administration Degree in Finance from
University of Southern Queensland. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified
Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Tong is a fellow member of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and a fellow member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He joined
the Group in June 2007. He has accumulated over ten years
of accounting, auditing and corporate financing experiences.
He is now responsible for accounting, corporate financing and
company secretarial duties.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group are the development and sale
of information and network technologies and services to the
financial industry in the PRC. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 29
to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to the profit
from operation by principal activities and geographical area of
operations for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results for the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 92.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of dividend.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the activities as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “Company Ordinance”), including a fair
review of the business, a discussion of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the
financial year 2018, an indication of likely future development
in the Group’s business, disclosures relating to the Group’s
environmental policies and performance, and relationships with
major stakeholders can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” sections of this
annual report. These discussions form part of this directors’

report.

Throughout 2018, there was no incidence of non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group’s business.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
8 May 2019 to 15 May 2019, both days inclusive, in order to
determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to
attend the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
15 May 2019 (the “AGM"). In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the forthcoming AGM, all transfer accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged
with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 7 May 2019.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 21
of the annual report.

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i & (@) BB ER A =

EBEL

SRR BRG] (B EEDIFE6228 X[ R RHEH 1) M
REFFELMET MMM - BEHAE

BT EES HAKEEHENEIERR R
THPEZENT® BT \BRFERS

BRELEWYHAEERELENEREHNFE
AEBEEBHEARETHRKERNER -
BRAASEREBRRERRREUALETIERN
EZRNBRENENBBECHNAFRIZR
BEIRIEEBTwA DM SEA - AL
WEBAEEHREEN & -

F-\FA AEERZETETHEEBA
EAFENARIERBAOINEMHELE -

EEMEROVBFERFE

AREEFMALEERNBR-_ZE—NFRA+AH
BOMBRREFAE((RRBEFRE))HE
% ARBRERZE—NEFRARANBE=Z—
NWFRATHB(BEEREMR) GEHIERR
B - BFEEBRLEINBRTHRERSF
AETRELRE FIERODBEXMHER
HEREZRBFREVBER_TE—NLFRA
+tATHFEE=1T2ARXTFARANE R
MBPELTREEEHRMNHERAR - HiLA
EBERANBERISIFEAMAL22E -

T HE R E
AEERBEABEMRFEZEAMEAA

EEMBEME BEBEaKERSAMBRR)
HNFERSHE22E -



f the Directors

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out on page 94 and page 212
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share capital and share options scheme
are set out in notes 25 and 26 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the law of Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda, share premium
of the Company is distributable to the shareholders. At
31 December 2018, the company had no reserve available for
distribution to equity of the company (2017: Nil).

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i R & # (£ H) R AR QT

i &

FRNAKERARNG 2 HEBEEZBHFBEDAH
MREIAE N E212E °

ME - - BENKRE

AEENYE BELARBE2EHFE &
RERE B HREKE14 -

% AS K2 B BR fE

AKAR WA ERRETEFB SRS RN E
B B R R M 5E255.26 ©

BLBEER

KQF 2 AR 4EEI sk E R iE L I E IR E A
NAIBRBEERRZERLAIBEESHER 2B
SEEHZIET -

Al 4K 2% 17 1
RIEBREQRGE(NAN—F) KA KK
HEAHEREFRE R N\FE+_A=

T—H  ARARRAAHIRE TRRZFHE (=
T—LF E)o

Annual Report 2018 =2 — NE £



f the Directors

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year ended
31 December 2018 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers
and customers are as follows:

Purchases
59% (2017: 51%)
73% (2017: 74%)

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers combined

Sales
35% (2017: 20%)
62% (2017: 54%)

— the largest customer
— five largest customers combined

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers
or customers stated above.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

So far as is known to any directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2018, shareholders (other than
directors or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote on all
circumstances at general meeting of any other members of the
Group or substantial shareholders as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN

SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(Contd)

(@) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

Number of shares held

FTERRREMATRES - HER
NREEEZEZR KR (E)

(D) AXATEREEIEBTZERAR

FEERGEE
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest position position shareholding
BRREH® g%/ ExmE5 ) #r BERLESH
Goldcorp Industrial Limited Beneficial owner 287,855,000 - 32.78%
ExnEAA (note 1)
(Bt
Great Song Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 287,855,000 - 32.78%
ExnEAA (notes 1 and 2)
(Brat1k2)
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 32.78%
RERBIE L A& B R (notes 2 and 4)
(Kt it2Rk4)
Beneficial owner 32,145,000 - 3.66%
ERERA
Ms. Li Kei Ling Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 32.78%
THER L EE R (notes 2 and 3)
(Htit2R%3)
Mdm lu Pun Family interest 385,000,000 - 43.84%
w2+ RXEBER (note 5)
(K1 #5)
(b) Share options (D) B E
Number of
Capacity/ Number of underlying
Name of shareholder Nature of interest options held shares
BEZ
RERER BB REEER BREHE HERMHE
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Beneficial owner 65,000,000 65,000,000
RREAS A& Em#EAAN
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(Contd)

Notes:

1. Goldcorp Industrial Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands equally owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai and Great Song
Enterprises Limited which in turn is wholly owned by Ms. Li Kei Ling.

2. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

3. Ms. Li Kei Ling controls more than one third of the voting power of Great
Song Enterprises Limited which in turn holds more than one third of the
voting power of Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Ms. Li Kei Ling is deemed, by
virtue of the SFO, to be interested in the same 287,855,000 shares held by
Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

4. Mr. Hung Yung Lai controls more than one third of the voting power of
Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed, by virtue of the
SFO, to be interested in the same 287,855,000 shares held by Goldcorp
Industrial Limited.

5. These shares are beneficially owned by Goldcorp Industrial Limited as
mentioned in Note 4 of above. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed to be
interested in the same 287,855,000 shares held by Goldcorp Industrial
Limited. Mdm Iu Pun is the wife of Mr. Hung Yung Lai and is deemed to
be interested in these shares in which Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed or
taken to be interested for the purpose of the SFO. She is also deemed to
be interested in the 65,000,000 share options and the 32,145,000 shares
beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai as mentioned in Note 4 above
for the purpose of SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the directors
or chief executives of the Company were not aware of any other
person (other than directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was interested in 5% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meeting of any other
member of the Group or any other substantial shareholders as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO.
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f the Directors

DIRECTORS’" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which he/she is taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or which
were required to be entered into the register required to be kept
by the Company, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

Shares in the Company:

EERFETHRAERRS - HEAR
NREERZEZRKR

RIE-NF+-_A=+—B ARAEER
TR AR E AN A R 2 LA (E ] AE B A B (FE &
REBEFNBEGEAIEXVE (FBEDFES71E))
ZEMBD BERORERETHTAR
BEFRBERIEXVHBEIRESHD A M
SARA LI Az EE SRR (BREEFR
BEREZMBEERAINZFHRXWEFERERE
BFANERIORR) IREFHFRBEED
FEIRFABECLRARABEFHNE MR AR
1B GEM £ 47 BI 55.48E5.671k R & AL A
NE RS RORRIT

KRR :

Number of shares held

FERGEE
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of
Name of Directors Nature of interest position position shareholding
Bl 5%,/ EHER ¥R xKE BAEREXESL
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 32.78%
Rl A EE R (note 1)
(K1)
Beneficial owner 32,145,000 - 3.66%
ERBEAA
Mr. Hung Ying Beneficial owner 9,565,000 - 1.09%
BT E ERBEAA
Mr. Lin Xue Xin Beneficial owner 6,720,000 - 0.77%
W F K & ERBEAA
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f the Directors

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

Shares in associated corporation:

EERFETHRAERRS - HEAR
MREEE2EZR LR (E)

HEEERD

Number of ordinary
shares held in Goldcorp
Industrial Limited

(note 2)
R Goldcorp Industrial Limited
FREERYA
(K it2)
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of

Name of Directors Nature of interest position position shareholding
EEnE 5%/ EEER L3 ) KRR BEREXEIHL
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Beneficial owner 1 - 50%
FeRIE KA ERBEAA
Notes: W

1. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai
has 50% interest in Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

2. The entire issued capital of Goldcorp Industrial Limited as of 31 December
2018 composed of 2 ordinary shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debenture
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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f the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted on 27 August 2001

providing incentives to directors and eligible employees, and

for the primary purpose of

has been expired on 27 August 2011. Under the Scheme,
the board of Directors of the Company may grant options
to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
The Scheme would be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the adoption date and have come to its
expiration. All other respects of the provisions of the Scheme
shall remain in full force and holders of all options granted under
the Scheme prior to such expiry shall be entitled to exercise the
outstanding options pursuant to the terms of the Scheme until
expiry of the said options. As a result, a new share option scheme
which was approved on 28 February 2011 (the”New Scheme”),
take effect immediately after the expiry of the Scheme. The
principal terms of the New Scheme are same with the Scheme.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders at
the special general meeting of the Company held on 28 February
2011 (the “SGM"), the Scheme mandate limit was refreshed
so that the Company was authorised to grant share options
under the existing Scheme for subscription of up to a total
of 81,184,000 shares, representing approximately 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the SGM.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 11 May
2016 (the "AGM"), the scheme mandate limit under the share
option scheme of the Company was refreshed again so that the
Company was authorised to grant additional share options for
subscription for a total of 86,443,000 shares under the refreshed
mandate limit, representing approximately 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the AGM.
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f the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont‘d)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 11 May
2018 (the “AGM"), the scheme mandate limit under the share
option scheme of the Company was refreshed again so that the
Company was authorised to grant additional share options for
subscription for a total of 61,032,000 shares under the refreshed
mandate limit, representing approximately 6.95% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the AGM.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon the
exercise of options granted and to be granted to each Participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12
months period up to the date of grant must not exceed 1% of
the shares in issue at the date of grant.

The subscription shall be a price determined by the board of
directors at its absolute discretion and shall not be less than the
higher of the closing price of the share on the date of grant of
the option and the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the option.

Options granted shall be deemed to be accepted upon receipt of
the acceptance of offer letter from the grantee within 28 days
from the offer date, together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period notified by the board
to each grantee but may not be exercised after the expiry of 10
years from the date of grant.
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f the Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont‘d)

On 9 October 2007 the Company granted 47,550,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.368 per share to its employees of the
Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price of HK$0.36
immediately before the day on which options were granted.
Options granted on 9 October 2007 were expired during year
2017.

On 19 January 2010 the Company granted 20,900,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.20 per share to its directors and
employees of the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing
price of HK$0.20 immediately before the day on which options
were granted.

On 16 August 2010 the Company granted 8,990,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.84 per share to its employees of the
Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price of HK$0.84
immediately before the day on which options were granted.

On 10 January 2011, the Company granted 65,000,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the company under the Share
Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.730 per share to Mr.
Hung Yung Lai, Chairman of the Group. Shares of the Company
were at closing price of HK$0.730 immediately before the day
on which options were granted. The grant of share options to
Mr. Hung Yung Lai and the specific mandate to allot, issue and
deal with the shares of the Company upon conversion of the
foregoing share options were approved by the SGM held on
28 February 2011.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont‘d)

On 13 January 2011, the Company granted 19,260,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Share
Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.714 per share to its
employees of the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing
price of HK$0.690 immediately before the day on which options
were granted. The grant of share options to its employees of the
Company and the specific mandate to allot, issue and deal with
the shares of the Company upon conversion of the foregoing
share options were approved by the SGM held on 28 February
2011.

On 24 June 2013, the Company granted 59,780,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Share
Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.1122 per share to a
Director and its employees of the Group. Shares of the Company
were at closing price of HK$0.101 immediately before the day
on which options were granted.

On 15 May 2015, the Company granted 21,400,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Share
Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.43 per share to a
Director and its employees of the Group. Shares of the Company
were at closing price of HK$0.43 immediately before the day on
which options were granted.

On 7 April 2017, the Company granted 86,440,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Share
Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.182 per share to its
directors, employees and consultants of the Group. Shares of the
Company were at closing price of HK$0.182 immediately before
the day on which options were granted.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont‘d)

The summary details of options granted are as follows:

Number of

BRESEE)

BRECZEEFBOT:

Number of

share options Number of Number of Number of Number of  share options
Name of directors, outstanding as  share options  share options  share options  share options  outstanding as
continuous contract at 1January  granted during exercised during cancelled during lapsed during  at 31 December
employees and consultants Exercise period 2018 the year the year the year the year 2018
RZB-N% RZB-NE
-A-H TZA=t-H
i FRRH EREAE EREIHE EREAR e
Btz KEANEEREE fEH BREHE BREHE BREHE BREHE BREHE BREHE
Pao Ping Wing 19 July 2010 to 600,000 - - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
BR& ZE-TELATNRE
“RCERE-ATAR
Thomas Tam 19 July 2010 to 600,000 - - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
HEE ZZ-ZELATNEE
ZTZTE-AH\H
Lo King Man 19 July 2010 to 600,000 - - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
EZX ZE-TELATNRE
ZZZZE-A\H
Hung Ying 19 July 2010 to 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000
18 January 2020
[ “Z-ZELATARE
ZE2EE-ATAR
Lin Xue Xin 19 July 2010 to 650,000 - - - - 650,000
18 January 2020
HEH Z2-ZELATNEBE
ZZZZE-AH\H
Continuous contract employees 19 July 2010 to 2,730,000 - - - - 2,730,000
(other than directors) 18 January 2020
FEANEE(ESRI “E-TELATNRE
“E-TE-AT)\R
Hung Ying 16 February 2011 to 1,550,000 - - - - 1,550,000
15 August 2020
it ZE-—-FZB+RAE
ZTZTENATRA
Lin Xue Xin 16 February 2011 to 310,000 - - - - 310,000
15 August 2020
Hes —E-——%-f+RAE
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e Directors

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont‘d)

Number of

BRETEE)

Number of

share options Number of Number of Number of Number of  share options
Name of directors, outstanding as  share options  share options  share options  share options  outstanding as
continuous contract at 1 January  granted during exercised during cancelled during  lapsed during at 31 December
employees and consultants Exercise period 2018 the year the year the year the year 2018
RZB-N% RZZ-N%
-B-A tZRZt-H
AT ERid FRETH ERERH ERBAM i3
BSig BEGNEESRER (KH BREHE BREZE BREHE BREHE BREZE BREHE
Continuous contract employees 16 February 2011 to 500,000 - - - - 500,000
(other than directors) 15 August 2020
FEANER(EERN ZF-—£ZFt5RAZ
ZZZZENATRA
Hung Yung Lai 28 February 2011 to 65,000,000 - - - - 65,000,000
9 January 2021
R “Z-—-£ZBZt\RZ
“E-%-ANH
Lin Xue Xin 28 February 2011 to 690,000 - - - - 690,000
12 January 2021
HEH “E-—%-A-tN\BE
“2--%-AtZH
Continuous contract employees 28 February 2011 to 11,600,000 - - - - 11,600,000
(other than directors) 12 January 2021
REANER(EERN ZE-—£ZBZt\RE
“BC-5-AtZA
Hung Ying 24 June 2013 to 40,000 - - - - 40,000
23 June 2023
g ZE-ZERAZTRAEZ
I -3
~AZtTZH
Continuous contract employees 24 June 2013 to 6,200,000 - - - - 6,200,000
(other than directors) 23 June 2023
BEADER(ESRMN ZB-ZERACZTHEEEZ
k- it =
~AZT=A
Hung Ying 15 May 2015 to 1,900,000 - - - - 1,900,000
14 May 2025
e ZE-RERATRRE
“ZZRERATEA
Lin Xue Xin 15 May 2015 to 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000
14 May 2025
HEH Z2-1fLATIRE
ZECRERATMA
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont‘d)

e Directors

Number of

BRETEE)

Number of

share options Number of Number of Number of Number of ~ share options
Name of directors, outstanding as  share options  share options  share options  share options  outstanding as
continuous contract at 1 January  granted during exercised during cancelled during  lapsed during at 31 December
employees and consultants Exercise period 2018 the year the year the year the year 2018
R=F-N% R=F-NF
-A-H +ZB=t-H
AT ERid EREFE FROHE EREAR X3
EEfg BEGNEESRER (KH BREHA BREHR BREHR BREHA BREHR BREHR
Continuous contract employees 15 May 2015 to 14,850,000 - - - - 14,850,000
(other than directors) 14 May 2025
FEANER(EERN Z2-1fLATIRE
ZECRERATMA
Hung Ying 7 April 2017 to 6 April 2027 2,650,000 - (1,325,000) - - 1,325,000
(% 2 tEMALAE
ZEZEEMARA
Lin Xue Xin 7 April 2017 to 6 April 2027 2,440,000 - (1,220,000) - - 1,220,000
3 “E-t5MALHE
ZZHEMARA
Pao Ping Wing 7 April 2017 to 6 April 2027 260,000 - - - - 260,000
RS “T-tENALAE
ZTZEERARA
Thomas Tam 7 April 2017 to 6 April 2027 260,000 - - - - 260,000
HER “E-tHMAtHE
ZEZEEMARA
Lo King Man 7 April 2017 to 6 April 2027 260,000 - - - - 260,000
EEX “E-tF¥OAtEE
ZZHEMARA
Continuous contract employees 7 April 2017 to 6 April 2027 34,260,000 - (1,420,000) - - 32,840,000
(other than directors)
BEADER(ESRMN Z2-t¥mAtHEE
ZEZEERARA
Consultants 7 April 2017 to 6 April 2027 45,810,000 - (9,765,000) - - 36,045,000
ER “Z-tEMALEE
ZEZEEMARA
199,260,000 - (13,730,000) - - 185,530,000
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f the Directors

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’
and chief executives’ interest and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures” below and the share option
scheme disclosures in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the company
granted to any director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, or the Company’s subsidiary or holding
company or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding company or
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDERS

Save for the directors, management shareholders and substantial
shareholders as herein disclosed, the Directors are not aware
of any persons who as at 31 December 2018 were entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of 5% or more of the voting
power at general meetings of the Company and who were able,
as a practical matter, to direct or influence the management of
the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the directors, management shareholders or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates, as defined in the GEM Listing Rules, has engaged
in any business that competes or may compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group or has any
other conflict of interests with the Group during year ended
31 December 2018.
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f the Directors

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on page 46 to page
84 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company maintained
the amount of public float as required under the GEM Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Hung Yung Lai (Chairman)

Hung Ying (Vice Chairman)

Lin Xue Xin (Chief Executive Officer)
Cui Jian

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Pao Ping Wing

Thomas Tam

Lo King Man

Pursuant to Clause 87 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Hung Yung Lai
and Mr. Thomas Tam shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. All of the
above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Pao Ping Wing, Mr. Thomas Tam and Mr. Lo King
Man and as at the date of this report still considers them to be
independent.
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f the Directors

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not terminable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 22 to
25 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and chief executive of
the Company and the five highest paid employees of the Group
are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company or a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries, had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions are set out in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements. During year 2018,
renewed tenancy agreement was entered into between
the Company as tenant and related company, Sing Lee
Limited,

The transactions contemplated under the renewed tenancy

Pharmaceutical Import & Export Co., as landlord.
agreements constitute continuing connected transactions (CCTs)
of the Group pursuant to GEM Listing Rule 20.29. The CCTs
are exempted from the reporting, announcement, annual review
and independent shareholders’ approval requirement pursuant to

GEM Listing Rule 20.74.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provides that every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) which he
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover
for legal actions brought against the Directors and directors
of the subsidiaries of the Group. The level of the coverage is
reviewed annually.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during

the year.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of

the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 were audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment.

B BLEm

BE-ZT-\F+_A=1+—HLFEZESE
FBBRERG F‘ﬁaﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁrﬁﬁﬁ%’fi e
REmERLNTAERBEEET -

On behalf of the Board REEZE
Hung Yung Lai FE
Chairman REEL I8
Hong Kong, 20 March 2019 B —h&F=A=+H
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERRES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the value and importance of achieving
high corporate governance standards to enhance corporate
performance, transparency and accountability, earning the
confidence of shareholders and the public. The Board strives
to adhere to the principles of corporate governance and adopt
sound corporate governance practices to meet the legal and
commercial standards by focusing on areas such as internal

control, fair disclosure and accountability to all shareholders.

The Company complied with the code provisions in Corporate
Governance Code (the "Code”) and Corporate Governance
Report which set out in Appendix 15 in the GEM Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2018. The Company
periodically reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure

its continuous compliance.

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions during the twelve months
ended 31 December 2018 as set out in GEM Listing Rules 5.48
to 5.67. The Company has made specific enquiry of all the
Directors and the Company was not aware of any noncompliance
with the required standard of dealings regarding the securities
transactions by Directors.
Specific employees who are likely to be possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with the same Code of Conduct. No
incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The board of directors of the Company comprises :
Executive Directors Hung Yung Lai (Chairman)
Hung Ying (Vice Chairman)
Lin Xue Xin

(Chief Executive Officer)
Cui Jian
Independent Non-executive Pao Ping Wing
Directors Thomas Tam
Lo King Man

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight over
the management. The board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximise the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the Group's
goals and directions with the prevailing economic and market
conditions. Daily operations and administration are delegated to
the management.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group at each period end
and of the results and cash flows for that period. In preparing
these financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently; made judgments and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERRES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Contd)

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for providing
with Board papers and related materials, for ensuring that all
Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations
are followed, and for reporting to the Chairman on governance
matters. All directors have unrestricted access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary. The Company secretary keeps
minutes of all meetings which are available for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Directors. The
Company Secretary also plays an essential role in the relationship
between the Company and its shareholders, including assisting
the Board in discharging its obligations to shareholders pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

In order to assist the Directors to carry out their duties, the
Board has set out terms of reference, enabling the Directors to
seek independent professional advice upon reasonable request
under appropriate circumstances and the fees are payable by the
Company.

Independent non-executive directors were appointed for a period
of two years commencing from their employment dates.

In compliance with rule 5.05A, 5.05 (1) and (2) of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive directors representing more than one-third
of the Board and at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive director an annual confirmation of his
independence, and the Company considers such directors to be
independent in accordance with each and the various guidelines

set out in rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

With the various experience of both the executive directors
and the non-executive directors and the nature of the Group’s
business, the Board considered that the directors have a balance
of skills and experience for the business of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Contd)

The Company has arranged for Directors’ Liability Insurance to
indemnify its Directors against potential liabilities incurred by
them in discharging their duties. The increase coverage for the
Directors is reviewed on an annual basis. Throughout the year,
no claim had been made against the Directors of the Company.

The Company has established a Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee will evaluate the independence of all
independent non-executive directors each year and make sure
that they comply with the independence requirement of the
Listing Rules. All members of the Board are not related to one
another in all aspects, including finance, family and business.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of 2-3 years. Such term is subject to
his re-appointment by the Company at an AGM upon retirement.

In accordance with the Company’'s Bye-laws, any Director
appointed by the Board, (i) to fill a casual vacancy in the Board,
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of
the Company and shall be subject to re-election at such meeting
and (ii) as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next
AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
In additions, in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, one
third of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election by shareholders at each annual general meeting of
the Company.
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TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities.
Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction
package covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory and
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company. The
Group also provides briefings and other training to develop
and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The Group
continuously updates Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. Circulars or guidance
notes are issued to Directors and senior management where
appropriate, to ensure awareness of best corporate governance
practices.

December 2018,
participated in the following trainings:

During the vyear ended 31 the Directors

BEERIIREE
EENEABBESEBEE BETEZAES
HESEEBRREN EZ!SEI%%&&LW“T
EFETLAEREERT L Z2EENER - K
SETRHEBN SR EMEI - UERKEKE
BEBEEZHBANBRRE AEEFERE
EREFHLLMBALREMBEREEREZ
BHERBR UBREFETZFHAR
ERHHRTCEXERATHCEHR THEE
BERT  ARFBREERRAEEAER
HBERES  WERMMAANEZELEE
AER e

RZB-NF+ZA=+—BFE EFLHE
AT 3

Type of
Trainings
F A B
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RERLE & A,B
Bz
Mr. Cui Jian EREAE A,B
Bz
Mr. Lin Xue Xin BT T A A,B
Bz
Mr. Hung Ying R A& AB
Bz
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUKHTES
Mr. Pao Ping Wing IR & e A,B
Bz
Mr. Thomas Tam HEE & AB
Bz
Mr. Lo King Man BERXEE AB
Bz
A:  Study corporate governance issue relating to directors’ duties . MRABREZBEZLEEARFE

B:+  Reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to the economy, general
business or directors’ duties etc.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
not be performed by the same individual. To ensure a balance
of power and authority, for the current reporting year, the
Chairman of the Board of the Company is Mr. Hung Yung Lai,
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company is Lin Xue Xin. Mr.
Hung Yung Lai and Mr. Lin Xue Xin are also Executive Directors
of the Company.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and effective
running of the Board and ensuring that all material issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner. The
Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the management of the
day-to-day operations and the implementation of the approved
strategies of the Group.

BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three Board committees, namely,
the remuneration committee, the nomination committee and
the audit and risk management committees, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
have been established with defined written terms of reference,
which are posted on the GEM’s website www.hkgem.com and
the Company’s website at www.singlee.com.cn. All the Board
committees should report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.

The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting
meetings of Board committees follow in line with, so far as
practicable, those of the Board meetings.
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BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS (Contd)

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in the Code which included developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development
of Directors, and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
code provision in the Code and disclosures in this report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established in November 2005.
The chairman of the committee is Mr. Pao Ping Wing, and other
members include Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Mr. Thomas Tam and Mr.
Lo King Man. The written terms of reference of the Remuneration
committee which have been revised effective on 26 March 2012
to comply with the new requirements set out in the revised code
provisions are posted on the GEM website and the Company’s
website.

The remuneration committee has been charged with the
responsibility of making recommendations to the Board on
appropriated policy and structures for all aspects of all Directors
and senior management remuneration. The remuneration
committee considers factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and

desirability of performance-based remuneration.
The remuneration committee has considered and reviewed the

remuneration packages and emoluments of Directors and senior
management and consider that are fair and reasonable.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established in March 2012. The
chairman of the committee is Mr. Hung Yung Lai and other
members include Mr. Pao Ping Wing, Mr. Thomas Tam and Mr.
Lo King Man. The written terms of reference of the nomination
committee which have been made effective on 26 March 2012
to comply with the new requirements set out in the revised code
provisions are posted on the GEM website and the Company’s
website.

The duties of the nomination committee are mainly to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; identify suitable
candidates for appointment as directors; make recommendations
to the Board on appointment or re-appointment of an succession
planning for directors; assess the independence of independent
non-executive directors; formulate and review the Board Diversity
Policy and the progress on achieving the objectives set for
implementing the policy.

The nomination committee considered the past performance,
qualification, general market conditions and the Company’s
articles of association in selecting and recommending candidates
of directorship. The nomination committee discussed and
reviewed the retirement and re-election of Directors.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The audit and risk management committee was established in
August 2001. The chairman of the audit and risk management
committee is Mr. Pao Ping Wing and other members include Mr.
Thomas Tam and Mr. Lo King Man, all of them are independent
non-executive directors. The written terms of reference of the
audit and risk management committee which have been revised
effective on 21 March 2016 to comply with the new requirement
set out in the revised code provision are posted on the GEM
website and the Company’s website.
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
(Cont’d)

The primary duties of the audit and risk management committee
are mainly to review the financial information, oversight of
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control
systems, audit plan and relationship with external auditors and
arrangements to enable employees of the Company to raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Company has complied with Rules 5.28 of the GEM Listing
Rules in that at least one of the members of the audit and risk
management committee (which must comprise a minimum of
three members and must be chaired by an Independent non-
executive director) is an independent non-executive director who
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
related financial management expertise.

Review of financial results

The audit and risk management committee reviewed the 2018
Consolidated Financial Statements in conjunction with external
auditor. Based on this review and discussions with management,
the audit and risk management committee was satisfied that the
Consolidated Financial Statements were prepared in accordance
with applicable accounting standards and fairly present the
Group’s financial position and results for the year ended
31 December 2018. The audit and risk management committee
therefore recommended the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018 be approved by the
Board.
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
(Cont’d)

Review of risk management and internal control systems

The audit and reviewed the

effectiveness of the Group’s policies and procedures regarding

risk management committee

internal control systems (including financial, operational, IT, risk
management, information security, legal, compliance and those
controls designed to detect material fraud) by reviewing the
work of the Internal audit department and the Group’s external
auditor, and regular reports from management including those
on risk management, regulatory compliance and legal matters.

The audit and
concurred with the management’s confirmation that for the

risk management committee reviewed and

year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems were effective with reference to
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) Internal Control — Integrated Framework
(2013) principles. The management’s confirmation was endorsed
by the audit and risk management committee and submitted to
the Board.

Review of accounting, financial reporting and internal
audit functions

The audit and risk management committee reviewed and was
satisfied with the adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has had policy of diversity in board appointments
as reflected in the current composition of the Board which is
characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in terms
of nationality, professional background and experience, as shown
in the following illustrations:

A Role of directors

N

Executive Directors
Independent Non-Executive Directors

w
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Cont’d) BEEEXRESTILBEE)
B Nationality B HE

Hong Kong, China 5 FEE B

China 2 A

@ Hong Kong, China
R EE

® China
A

* Nationality is based on passport, and does not necessarily reflect ethnic origin. * BIEERIREREMR W -FERMEE -

C Professional background C HXEER
Business 2 T 2
Computer and information technology 1 B REEEA 1
Human settlements planning and development 1 ANERETRRAEEERE 1
Accounting and auditing 1 BRI REE 1
Education and cultural development 1 BERXILER 1
Computer science and technology 1 SHE MR 2 A 1
@ Business
Ims

@ Computer and information technology

B RBRER

@ Human settlements planning and development
ANEEERIZHREIERE

@® Accounting and auditing
SRt NERT

@ Education and cultural development

HE R ER

Computer science and technology

RECE Tt )
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Contd)
D Age

35-44
45-54
55-64
65-74
75-84

- N O = =

7~

We believe that board diversity enhances decision-making
capability and a diverse board is more effective in dealing with
organisational changes and less likely to suffer from group
thinking. We recognise that board diversity is an essential
element contributing to the sustainable development of the
Company. The objectives of this Policy are, with the support of
our shareholders, to have a Board which:

a) is characterised by a broad range of views arising from
different experiences when discussing business;

b) facilitates the making of informed and critical decisions; and
¢)  has sustainable development as its core value,
and thus promotes the interests of all our stakeholders,

particularly the long-term interests of our shareholders, fairly and
effectively.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Cont«d)

For the purpose of this Policy, we considers the concept of
diversity incorporates a number of different aspects, such as
professional experiences, business perspectives, skills, knowledge,
gender,
and length of service. The achievement of these objectives is

age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity

measurable on an objective review by shareholders of the overall
composition of the Board, the diversity of background and
experience of individual directors and the effectiveness of the
Board in promoting shareholders’ interests.

In order for shareholders to judge for themselves whether the
Board as constituted is a reflection of diversity, or a gradual
move to increased diversity, on a scale and at a speed which
they support, we shall continue to provide sufficient information
to shareholders about the size, qualifications, characteristics etc.
of each individual Board member and therefore, the Board as a
whole.

The nomination committee has been charged with the review of
the Board Diversity Policy on a periodic basis. The nomination
committee believes that the approach of review of the Policy
may take the form of an analysis of the Board in the different
aspects of diversity as set out above having regard to the
sustainable development of the Company, supplemented with
shareholders’ feedback on the diversity of the Board and its
overall effectiveness in promoting shareholders’ interests.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS 2 E R
The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, ®E2FHREE_ZT—N\F+_A=1+—HIHF
Audit and Risk Management Committee meetings, Remuneration EHFEE=e % EXNMNEABREEZES
Committee meetings and Nomination Committee meetings @&  FMHZECeELREZTET SR
during the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the &E&FENRTXR:
following table:
Audit
and Risk
Management Remuneration ~ Nomination
Board  Committee = Committee =~ Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ERR
EREE HMWZE® REFZEE
Directors EE E83® ZEBEg8R = =]
Number of meetings held BRETRY 5 5 1 1
Number of meetings attended/ eRLENY/
Number of meetings held SEBTRY
Executive Directors UITES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai REmELE 5/5 - 11 1/1
Mr. Cui Jian EREAE 5/5 - - -
Mr. Lin Xue Xin HEH F L 5/5 - - -
Mr. Hung Ying Y 5/5 - - -
Independent non-executive directors BUFHITEE
Mr. Pao Ping Wing AR EE 5/5 5/5 11 1/1
Mr. Thomas Tam HEE KL 5/5 5/5 ”n ”n
Mr. Lo King Man EENRAE 4/5 4/5 il 17
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

The fees in respect of audit services provided by the independent
auditor to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
amounted approximately RMB992,000 (2017: RMB808,000). No
other significant fee was incurred for non-audit services during
the year (2017: Nil).

DIRECTORS" AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the company and its subsidiaries, in accordance
with accounting principle generally accepted in Hong Kong.
The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks (including ESG-
related risks) it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems (including those for
ESG-related risks) and reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. To this end,
management continues to allocate resources for internal control
and risk management systems compatible with the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO0) Internal Control — Integrated Framework 2013 principles
to provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than

eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Risk Management

At the Group, risk is defined as a potential action, event or
circumstance that could impact the Company’s ability, favorably
or unfavorably, to meet its strategic goals.

Risk is inherent in the Group’s business and the markets in which
it operates. The aim is to identify risks and then manage them so
that they can be understood, reduced, mitigated, transferred or
avoided. This demands a proactive approach to risk management
and an effective group-wide risk management framework.

Risk governance structure
The Group's risk governance structure is based on a “Three Lines

of Defence” model, with oversight and directions from the Board
and Audit and Risk Management Committee.
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Operational Management Risk Management
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Corporate Governance Report

REREERABEEE)

(Cont’d)
Risk Management (Cont'd) E R EE(E)
Risk governance structure (Cont'd) EBRELFEE)
Roles Functions BE TR B¢
The Board o Has overall responsibility for the risk - o HERERRANINEE
management and internal control systems. ARBRBEEE-

o Oversees the actions of the Management o EETEETAREXR
and monitors the overall effectiveness of 2 b TR M D BR 1 RE
the risk management system and internal BEMEEENE -
control function.

o Oversees and reviews processes and o EEBRFELHERZER
controls for strategic and operational risk AR R A
and monitors the effectiveness of the LBEREZLEREE
established controls through the Audit and ZEGRERMALE
Risk Management Committee. B A B

Audit and Risk o Supports the Board in monitoring the ERRRERE |» WMOEFSEERERE
Management performance of the risk management BZE® BERMERRLEER
Committee system and key risks and internal control B R N EPES R R AT -

systems.

o Reviews the effectiveness of the Company's o EBEXRSEANBBEZRK
internal audit function. B A o

o Reviews risks raised during annual risk o EEAFERBEIXSE
registration exercise, and other risks and RREMEBERBIARE
concerns. 1 ) 2L B % BE P8 o

o Approves Company's risk tolerance. o BARRANARXERE

KF e
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

B b EERAEBEEE(E)

(Cont’d)
Risk Management (Cont'd) E R EE(E)
Risk governance structure (Cont’d) EREREE(E)
Roles Functions e T 88
Audit and Risk o FEvaluate and determine the nature and ERRER o REFSEFEHELEE

Management
Committee
(Contd)

extent of the risks the Board is ready to
endorse for the Group to take in pursuing
the delivery of the Group’s strategic
objectives.

Ensure that an appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control
systems is established and maintained by
the Group.

Oversee the Management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

Oversee the Management in their risk
mitigation efforts.
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Internal Audit

Independent investigations regarding
certain allegations of fraud and violations
of the Group's Code of Conduct and other
company policies.

Carries out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

RETERFTARERA
SETAERARAMLR
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Corporate Governance Report

REREERABEEE)

(Cont’d)
Risk Management (Cont'd) E R EE(E)
Risk governance structure (Cont'd) EBRELFEE)
Roles Functions y==! B BE
The Management | ¢  Provide leadership and guidance for the ERE o BEBERDRzHIME

balance of risk and return.
Designs, implements and reviews the
Group's risk management and internal
control systems.

Communicate and assess the Group's risk
profile and material risks at the Group
level.

Track progress of mitigation plans of
material risks and report on detailed
examinations of specific risks as required.

Oversee business units as well as group
risk and the control activities relevant to
respective functions.

Ensure that a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control
systems has been conducted at least
annually and provide such confirmation
to the Board through the Audit and Risk
Management Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Risk Management (Contd)
Risk governance structure (Cont'd)

The Management, which co-ordinates enterprise risk
management activities and reviews significant aspects of risk
reports to the Audit and Risk

Management Committee at each regularly scheduled meeting,

management for the Group,

including amongst other things, significant risks of the Group
and the appropriate mitigation and/or transfer of identified
risks. The operating units of the Group, as risk owners, identify,
evaluate, mitigate and monitor their own risks, and report such
risk management activities to the Management on a regularly
basis. The Management assesses and presents regular reports
to Audit and Risk Management Committee at each regularly
scheduled meeting.

The Management and employees have evaluated control
environment and conducted risk assessments of businesses and
processes, both at the entity level and the various processes/
transactions levels. We have documented those processes which
are critical to the Group’s performance. Within this exercise,
key risks have been identified, along with the controls required
to mitigate those risks, after which, such key risks and controls
are continually reviewed and updated on an annual basis. High-
risk key controls are tested annually by our management and
internal audit. Based on the results of those tests, process owners
are able to represent to Senior Management that their internal
controls are working as intended or that necessary corrections
have been made where control weaknesses have been found.
Internal auditors report to Audit and Risk Management
Committee that controls have been working properly or have

been modified as required.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal
controls undertaken within the Group, the external auditor
also assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of certain
key risk management and internal controls as part of their
statutory audits. Where appropriate, the external auditor’s
recommendations are adopted and enhancements to the risk

management and internal controls will be made.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Risk Management (Contd)
The Group’s risk management objectives:

e At a strategic level, the Group focuses on the identification
and management of material risks at the Group, business
and functional levels, in order to better equip itself to
pursue the Group's strategic and business objectives.

e At an operational level, the Group aims to identify,
assess, evaluate and mitigate operational hazards and
risks in order to create a safe, healthy, efficient and
environmentally-friendly workplace for its employees whilst
ensuring products and services provided safety and health,
minimising environmental impact, and securing asset
integrity.

The Group’s risk appetite and risk profiling criteria

The Group's risk appetite represents the amount of risk the
Group is willing to undertake in pursuit of its strategic and
business objectives. In line with expectations of its stakeholders,
the Group will only take reasonable risks that (a) fit its strategy
and capability, (b) can be understood and managed, and (c) do
not expose the Group to:

° material financial loss;

e incidents affecting safety and health of employees;

e material breach of regulations;

e damage of the Group’s reputation and brand name;

e Dbusiness/supply interruption; and

° severe environmental incidents.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Risk Management (Contd)
The Group’s risk appetite and risk profiling criteria (Contd)

Based on the above, the Group has established its risk monitoring
in the form of a risk assessment matrix to help rank risks and
prioritise risk management efforts at the Group level. Business
units are required to adopt the same risk matrix structure in
order to establish their own risk profiling, determine consequence
and likelihood of identified risks with reference to their own
materiality and circumstances as well as establishing risk
mitigation strategies.

Inherent risk assessment matrix

B b EERAEBEEE(E)

B b EE(E)

5 B 19 7 e & E BE ) B R B AT 15 B R (8D

R £t 2R - N5 [ E R B R (SRR R LA
ETRRERMAL AN EEEEHER
BERETIFETERYEF REERLEXHE
LR MAER MR EERERTEELANY
MR ARECHNAROEENE R
BREE R R R EATREM - fem bl 7] AR 47
R SR BE e

& & [ B2 5 fh 4

Likelihood Rating

BLETRMEER
1. Highly 2. Not 4. Strong
Impact Rating unlikely expected 3. Sometimes possibility 5. Very likely
BRER ] TR &E CIR:] B A T RE “OsE

5. Critical Moderate High
B IR | B = 2 B2
4. Major Moderate Moderate

BEX B L B
3. Moderate Low Moderate
& 1K = 2 &
2. Minor Low Low
LR 1K 2 1K B fx
1. Insignificant Low Low
15 8 1l 1K = Fax 1K = b

[
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Moderate High High
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Low Moderate Moderate
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Low Low Low
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(Cont’d)
Risk Management (Contd)

Risk management process

The following diagram illustrates the key processes used by the T BIFiFABAEBAEZA TR LEELAE

B b EE(E)

mEEERRF

Group to identify, evaluate and manage the Group’s significant EE KRBT EZBIE:

risks:
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The management establishes common risk language and risk assessment criteria for the
Group.

Business units identify the risks which may potentially impact the achievement of their
business objectives, and analyze and evaluate the significance of such risk.

Business units assess the adequacy of existing controls, determine and implement
treatment plans where risk mitigants are actionable.

Business units monitor risk mitigating activities.

The management tracks the progress of risk mitigating activities; reports the consolidated
view of risks regularly to audit and risk management committee;and shares risk knowledge
across business units to enhance the risk management standard of the Group.

Group internal audit reports regularly to the Board and/or audit and risk management
committee to provide independent assurance on the effectiveness of risk management
function.
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e s integrated into business and decision-making processes ¢ YA ZIEEENIRFIRESR - BIE R
including strategy formulation, business planning, capital HIE - EBRE - BEeHE - RERTE
allocation, investment decisions, internal control and day- NEEEIE R AR & &

to-day operations management.

e Involves establishing the context, identifying risks, assessing o EIEEEE - R B EK - 5B D TH

their consequences and likelihood, evaluating risk level,

BA1& R & B3R B0 AT BE MEAF AL B 7k 5F

control gaps and priorities, and developing control and h EE2RBEE )Emﬂ’\]xi ' IIZZL‘ET‘ME
mitigation plans. This is a continuous process with periodic RBEFF - LA R HIFT EE R M A7 42 51 &l o

monitoring and review in place.
process with stakeholder communication and consultation.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Risk Management (Contd)

Risk management process (Cont'd)

The Group adopts an integrated bottom-up and top-
down risk review process to enable (a) comprehensive
identification and prioritisation of all material risks
throughout the Group, (b) escalation of material risks at
the right managerial level, (c) effective risk dialogue among
the management team, and (d) proper oversight of risk
mitigation efforts.

Bottom-up process:

e Business units and group functions are required to
submit their material risks identified through their risk
management process to the management.

e  The management, through aggregation, filtering and
prioritising processes as well as consultation process,
compile a Group Risk Management Report. The senior
management reviews and scrutinises the material risks
and ensures the appropriate controls and mitigation
measures are in place or in progress.

e  Following review by the senior management, Group
Risk Management Report is submitted to the audit and
risk management committee with a summary of the
material risks circulated to the Board.

Top-down process:

e Emerging risks and/or overarching strategic risks, which
might have a material impact on the Group over a
longer timeframe, are monitored and discussed on a
regular basis by the management.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i R & # (£ H) R AR QT

EREERANIBEEE)

B b EE(E)

B EEREF (&)

AEBEABETMERBEM TNES
[\ B i RS A2 P L‘Mﬁ%(a)’fﬁ%%%ljﬁlﬁq
MEBEARE  XETERFERF  (0F
BEARRER EHRE m%‘ﬁﬁeﬁﬁ&?ﬂ'()
EEEEMREBETARER  WLd)E
EEERRGETE-

BN b e AR

o EBEBEMMEBEBEILMAREIE
EBERERMBRESIEBEPHRFIOE
KEBR ©

e EREFBES HEREFHY
BURFZRAEF GEEERBRE
BRE  SREEEESEENER
THEREHEEXRKDNEENETR
AFEEE -

- GEBEBREEEE BEERSR
EHRAREREAS YEREA
Y-S £ LR

7 R IR -
« EREEHERRIATEHAE

ERBRNERFENTERBR KL,
HEAMERERR

Annual Report 2018 =2 — NE £



Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

Corporate Governance Report

~/A-h-\A:|: i
=

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Risk Management (Contd)

Risk management process (Cont'd)

Top-down process: (Cont’d)

e The management facilitates ongoing emerging risk
review and management discussion by compiling
relevant information from both internal and external
sources. Overarching strategic risks are reviewed and
discussed during the annual business planning process.
Emerging risks that are identified and considered
material are further assessed and monitored by relevant
business units or group functions.

Internal control is an integral part of enterprise risk
management. The Group’s enterprise risk management
framework encompasses internal control, forming a more
robust conceptualization and tool for management. Risk
management is closely linked to the Group’s Integrated
Framework of Internal Control, key controls are subject to
testing in order to assess their effectiveness.
In the annual business planning process, business units
are required to identify all material risks that may impact
their achievement of business objectives. Identified risks are
evaluated based on the same set of risk profiling criteria as
the risk review process. Plans to mitigate the identified risks
are developed for implementation and budget purposes.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to oversee the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems. This is
achieved through a defined management structure with specified
limits of authority and defined control responsibility designed to:

e Achieve business objectives and safeguard assets against
unauthorised use or disposition;

e Ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
for publication; and

e  Ensure compliance with the relevant legislation and
regulations.

72 . SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED % % # (%£8) BB AR AT

®

>

EREERANIBEEE)

A B B 4
%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁfgﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁlmﬂﬁr%
MEBE L - AR A MR AEBEE R R
Eﬁ%%%%&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁmEﬁ 21
ERH BE:

s ERXBEBERMLEERAREEEME
R E

s MERZEMRFETE RABAE
EEIRMIBFERAISENMBER R

o MWRETHBELMER -

Annual Report 2018 =2 — NE £



Corporate Governance Report

~/A-h-\A:|: i
=

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Cont’d)
Internal control framework

The Company has in place an integrated framework of internal
controls which continues to be consistent with Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO)
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) which comprises
17 principles on effective internal controls as illustrated below:

REREERABEEE)

wER L ()
BB B FEHE 28

AN & B # 17 LA Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO) H)  Internal Control — Integrated
Framework (2013) KA BPESIE — 4R A IELR (=T
—ZEND)REFANGEANTEERE -5 H
ERBRATI7THEAER A XA EZENR
gl :

A

ethical values.

e Demonstrates a commitment to attract,
develop, and retain competent individuals
in alignment with objectives

. Holds individuals accountable for their
internal control responsibilities in the
pursuit of objectives

5 Components 17 Principles SKREZR 17ERE

Control o Demonstrates a commitment to integrity THIIRIE o BRUBNGNEZEEN
environment: and ethical values 7¥<a*ﬁ

The internal o The Board demonstrates independence DEBEEE |o EF2BUREEE:
organizational from management and exercises oversight 2 Bk TEBRNDPEZE R
Environment of the development and performance of i HER B R B AR N
driven by the internal control BEEERE
Management )N B4
operating ¢ The management establishes, with board BRI - o HEREgEET ERE
philosophy, oversight, structures, reporting lines, and BUMGERE ERE
risk appetite, appropriate authorities and responsibilities GRREENEERRE
integrity, and in the pursuit of objectives NEINEENTCERR
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B b EERAEBEEE(E)

(Cont’d)
Internal Controls (Cont'd) REPE = (4E)
Internal control framework (Cont‘d) AIBBE RS ()
5 Components 17 Principles SKREZR 1718 JR A

Risk assessment:

Risks are identified
and the likely
impact on the
organization is
assessed.

Specifies objectives with sufficient clarity to
enable the identification and assessment of
risks relating to objectives

Identifies risks to the achievement of its
objectives across the entity and analyses
risks as a basis for determining how the
risks should be managed

Considers the potential for fraud in
assessing risks to the achievement of
objectives

Identifies and assesses changes that could
significantly impact the system of internal
control
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Control activities:

Policies and
procedures are
Implemented
to ensure
organizational
objectives and
risk-mitigation
activities are
effectively
executed.

Selects and develops control activities that
contribute to the mitigation of risks to the
achievement of objectives to acceptable
levels

Selects and develops general control
activities over technology to support the
achievement of objectives

Deploys control activities through policies
that establish what is expected and
procedures that put policies into action
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REREERABEEE)

(Cont’d)
Internal Controls (Cont’d) AR (2)
Internal control framework (Cont'd) A EBEEFEHESE ()
5 Components 17 Principles SKREZR 1718 R A

Information and
Communication:

. Obtains or generates and uses relevant,
quality information to support the functioning
of internal control

EERRER:

WER SRS - M FAR
LRBENER  XFHAE
EERTEE

control activities
as a result of
the monitoring
process.

board of directors, as appropriate

Relevant AR 7R R
information is o Internally communicates information, B EEE o REEXNBEELHN
communicated including objectives and responsibilities for BiEE 2 HEmEEMRNER
in an acceptable internal control, necessary to support the AL EKE PRENBEENENNE
format and functioning of internal control Z o £
timely fashion
to enable the o Communicates with external parties regarding . 5519\\7?5’ TENH S
organization matters affecting the functioning of internal EEMEEETER
to meet its control
objectives.
Monitoring: o Selects, develops, and performs ongoing and/ EREE: o EB HPVERKE
or separate evaluations to ascertain whether % /BTG EE
The internal the components of internal control are present BEEEAD EABEENEEZR
control process and functioning AR o BEUEEER
is continually JEES iR
monitored. o Evaluates and communicates internal control BEERE | FERFEABEZNR
Modifications deficiencies in a timely manner to those HHETE + A K WEEHEEERR
are made to parties responsible for taking corrective REINEITS AMFEBMBEEBAT - B
improve internal action, including senior management and the BEE o EREEBABNESE
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Contd)
Internal control framework (Cont’d)

Within this comprehensive internal control framework,
management is responsible for setting the appropriate tone
from the top, performing risk assessments, and owning the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls.
Other teams such as Finance, Legal, and Human Resources
provide assistance and expertise to management to assist it in
undertaking its responsibilities. The Board and its audit and risk
management committee oversee the actions of management and
monitor the effectiveness of the established controls, assisted by

assurance provided by the external and internal auditors.
Control standards, checks and balances

Built into the Group’s system are checks and balances. In
addition, as an integral part of our internal control systems,
well defined policies and procedures are properly documented
and communicated. The corporate policies form the basis of all
the Group’s major guidelines and procedures and set forth the
control standards required for the functioning of the Group’s
business entities. The policies address legal, regulatory, and
operational topics, including, for example, intellectual property,
data privacy, employee health and safety, delegation of authority,
information security, and business continuity.

Our internal control systems are based on clear stewardship
responsibilities, authorities and accountability and the systems
cover every activity and transaction of our Group. We emphasise
to our employees that everyone, no matter where he or she
stands in the corporate hierarchy, is an important part of our
internal control systems and we expect them to contribute to
that system.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Contd)
Control standards, checks and balances (Cont’d)

Additionally, the Group has a strong corporate culture based on
good business ethics and accountability. The Code of Conduct,
which applies to all employees, forms the basis of the Group’s
commitment to conducting all business with uncompromising
integrity and ethical behavior. The Code also helps employees
determine when to ask for advice, and how to obtain it. All
employees are required to comply with the Code. The Group
regards any violation of the Code as a serious matter and is
committed to investigating all reported concerns. Furthermore,
in keeping with best practices, the Group has developed and
implemented an Anti-Corruption Policy which reinforces the
Code and provides additional specific guidance regarding
compliance with rules and laws related to corruption. In addition
to setting out guidelines, principles and values, we recognise that
an environment where employees feel free to bring problems
to management is also necessary to make our internal control
systems effective. Our Whistleblowing Policy makes it clear that
all reports to management will be handled confidentially to the

fullest extent possible under the circumstances.

This comprehensive internal controls framework established by
the Group covers all activities and transactions. Management
performs periodic enterprise wide risk assessments and
continuously monitors and reports progress of action plans to
address these key risks. Management also assesses business risks
when formulating corporate strategies, and tracks and reports
on the implementation of strategic initiatives, business plans,

budgets and financial results regularly to the Board.
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TRERRES

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Contd)
Control standards, checks and balances (Cont’d)

To assist the audit and risk management committee in its
oversight and monitoring activities, the Group maintains an
independent internal audit function. Internal audit department,
with its function independent of the Group’s business operations
and complementary to that of the external auditor, plays an
important role in monitoring the Group’s internal governance.
Internal audit provides objective assurance to the audit and risk
management committee that the system of internal controls is

effective and operating as intended.
Key control procedures

(i)  Establishing a structure with defined authority and proper
segregation of duties

— A clear organisational structure with defined lines
of responsibility to facilitate systematic delegation of
authority.

- Written policies,
defined
effective segregation of duties and controls.

procedures and guidelines with
limits of delegated authority to facilitate

(i) Monitoring the strategic plan and performance
—  Business units carry out their respective business
operating plans as laid down in the strategic plan in
accordance with the adopted policies and procedures.
— An annual budget with financial targets provides
the foundation for the allocation of resources in

accordance with prioritised business opportunities.

—  Variance analyses help identify deficiencies and enables
timely remedial actions to be taken.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Cont’d)

Key control procedures (Cont'd)

(iii) Designing an effective accounting and information system

A comprehensive accounting system for providing
financial and operational performance indicators
to facilitate problem identification, and to ensure
complete, relevant and accurate financial information
for timely reporting and disclosure purpose.

An information system for identifying, capturing
and communicating pertinent information to enable
employees to carry out their responsibilities.

Regular reviews for ensuring proper and legitimate
dissemination of financial information.

(iv) Handling and dissemination of inside information

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

The Group regularly review inside information’s policy
and procedures and make recommendations on a
amendments there to, if necessary, in order to ensure
their effectiveness in making accurate, balanced and
timely disclosure of information in accordance with
disclosure obligations in the changing regulatory
environment.
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TRERRES

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Cont’d)
Key control procedures (Cont'd)
(v) Encouraging reporting on serious concern about malpractice

— The Group operates a Whistleblowing Policy which
enables employees to raise concerns about any
malpractice, impropriety or fraud relating to internal
controls and other matters confidentially, without fear
of reprisal or victimization.

—  Under the Group Whistleblowing Policy, audit and risk
management committee are responsible for reviewing
the effectiveness of the actions taken in response to
disclosures made under the policy by employees.

- Other stakeholders, such as customers and suppliers,
can also raise concerns about any improprieties or
potential improprieties of the Group.

(vi) Ensuring controls and reviews of IT application systems as
well as principal operations

—  Various controls and independent reviews are in place

to uphold the integrity, reliability, availability, security
and stability of the Group’s IT application systems.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

Regarding the disclosure of inside information and internal
control measures, the Company understands its duties under the
Listing Rules and SFO, and adheres to the important principle of
timely publication of the inside information. The Company abides
by the
by the Securities and Futures Commission, and has developed

“Guide on disclosure of inside information” published

a complete system of internal procedures and internal control
measures for processing and publication of information in
order to ensure the timely, accurate and appropriate disclosure
of relevant information to the shareholders and regulatory
authorities.

The Group takes all reasonable measures from time to time to
ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a
disclosure requirement. In this respect, the Management ensures
that appropriate systems and procedures are put in place and
reviewed periodically to enable the Group to comply with the
disclosure requirements. The management also regularly oversees
the proper implementation and functioning of the mechanisms
and ensures that any material deficiencies are detected and
resolved in a timely manner.

Measures include but are not limited to the following:

(@) Establish controls for monitoring business and corporate
developments and events so that any potential inside
information is promptly identified and escalated.

(b) Restrict access to inside information to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Ensure employees who
are in possession of inside information are fully conversant
with their obligations to preserve confidentiality.

(c) Ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements are in place
when the Group enters into significant negotiations.
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TEERRES

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information (Contd)

(d) Develop procedures for responding to market rumours, leaks
and inadvertent disclosures.

(e) Provide regular training to relevant employees to help them
understand the Company’ policies and procedures as well
as their relevant disclosure duties and obligations.

(f)  Disseminate inside information via the electronic publication
system operated by the Stock Exchange before the
information is released via other channels, such as the press,
wire services or posting on the Company’s website.

Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2018, the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems have been reviewed twice a year.

During 2018, Group internal audit conducted selective reviews of
the effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal
controls of the Group over financial, operational and compliance
controls with emphasis on business continuity management and
procurement. Additionally, the heads of major business and
corporate functions were required to undertake control self-
assessments of their key controls. These results were assessed
by the senior management and reported to the audit and risk
management committee, which then reviewed and reported the
same to the Board.

The audit and risk management committee and the Board were
not aware of any areas of concern that would have a material
impact on the Group’s financial position or results of operations
and considered the risk management and internal control systems
to be generally effective and adequate including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions.
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TRERRES

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted Shareholders Communication Policy
with objective of ensuing that the Shareholders and potential
investors are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company.

The Company has established a number of channels to
communicate with the Shareholders as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports, quarterly
reports, interim reports and circulars are issued in printed
form and are available on the GEM website www.hkgem.
com and the Company’s website at www.singlee.com.cn;

(i) periodic announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange and published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iii) corporate information is made available on the Company’s
website;

(iv) annual and special general meetings provide a forum for
the shareholders to make comments and exchange views
with the Directors and senior management; and

(v) the Hong Kong share registrar of the Company serves
the Shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend
payment and related matters.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and

enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and

potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public enquiries to the Board or the

Company may be sent by post to the Company’s principal place

of business in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there is no significant
change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of

association.
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TEERHRESE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholder’s interest
and rights, separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration voting. All
resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted
by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and the poll voting
results will be posted on the GEM website and the Company’s
website after the relevant shareholders’” meeting.

Extraordinary general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company or by such shareholders
who made the requisition (the “Requisitionists”) (as the case may
be) pursuant to Article 58 of the Bye-laws. Such requisition must
state the object of business to be transacted at the meeting
and must be signed by the Requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company or the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong. Shareholders should follow
the requirements and procedures as set out in such Article for
convening an extraordinary general meeting. Shareholders may
put forward proposals at general meeting of the Company by
sending the same to the Company at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may
send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP)
LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 92 to 212, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to

the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the IASB. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance the International Ethics Standards
Code of Ethics for
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical

Board for Accountants’ Professional

responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

B RETTER

ARBAFTESRBEAMNIEXZHE - AR
HAME AV B RANEARDEZNTIR o
ZEESHEERMESRBREBEAM T HRER
HABREETRIEN AT SUZFTS
REEHERER -

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BRESEER EMNESFTNNEEFARETSSE R

Estimated provision of expected credit losses for
trade receivables

BRE GRS ZI1G AR EERXER

We identified estimated provision of expected credit Our procedures in relation to estimated provision of
losses for trade receivables as a key audit matter due to expected credit losses for trade receivables included:
the exercise of significant management judgement and FKIEEEWEZER G BHEEBREHENR
estimation for the determination of allowance for expected % £ 3F :

credit losses of trade receivables.
EMEERESER2HATEHEEBLXBEEDRN A
MEETEE W AN EEEETRKESERER A
HEEBABERITEE R RMEFATE-

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying value of the
Group's trade receivables was RMB66,127,000, net of
allowance for credit losses of RMB1,192,000. The Group
uses provision matrix to estimate expected credit losses
for the trade receivables as at 31 December 2018. The
provision rates are based on internal credit ratings as
groupings of various debtors that have similar loss patterns.
The provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable information
and that is available without undue cost or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information
are considered. In addition, trade receivables with credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.
RZZE-N\F+_A=+—H  EXEEKBESERZ
FREE A AR66,127,000T - HIBREEBLABEAR
1,192,000 ° EBEEERABHEEBENGEHR -2~ °
NFHZA=+—RAzZRKREBEGERCHEBEEERLX -
BEBEXDRBABCEETRAE  BRABEUBKLE
ANZBERUEREEERR AR - BEBEMEIIR
B BEEEBRARAEEL  EREEABELEN  H
RBEBRKKAIBHEAEESNEERAZFHER -

/!

REBRESAY  EMFEBEERE  WEBREUEE
B &gy - thoh - BEEREZRKE S RREET
BHEERRFMG -

Details relating to the determination of allowance for
expected credit losses of trade receivables are set out
in Notes 3, 18 and 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.
HETRKRESIRACTERACEERLABEEB S
BN EEe M mRME3 1831 -
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Obtaining an understanding of the key controls
over the processes that the management
performed for assessing the impairment of trade
receivables including the use of provision matrix;
THEBEMRTHEKEZERFOREETE
FzXeEE BREEREEHER:

Obtaining an understanding and evaluating the
appropriateness of the basis of management’s
judgement about the determination of groupings
of various debtors that have similar loss patterns;
THEFREEERE T ARAMUBRIREA 2%
ERBERSBZHEBEEZ @E ML

Evaluating the reasonableness of management’s
determination of the expected credit loss rates
based on historical default rates and taking into
consideration of the forward-looking information;
AEEREERBRBTHERELEZEARLER
RETEHEERXzAEML:

Assessing the estimates used to determine
historical default rates by considering historical
cash collection performance of different
groupings of trade receivables;

AEETBEBREMAZMAG  TEABREER
EEEKRESERAER 2 BERSUWRKE

Discussing with the management for forward-
looking information used and assessing
the information based on publicly available
information and;
HEBENWMAZAREERRBREAFRE
M EEER &

Testing the accuracy of management’s calculation
of the expected credit losses for trade receivables.
@%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%%%%%%ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ%%
AR o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
in the annual but does not include the

included report,

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B M % LD

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i R & # (£ H) R AR QT

EERAEERGFSMBMRAKRE
MEEE)

EREFAUIBERERK EFA8FGES
BEELENRED AREEABRATHRER
FELEARANEER UREAKERLER
SETER BRIEZFEHESEFRAE
e P EEMERNERTER -

BB HEN S M BRRAREN
B

BMONBERENHGEAMBERREBRES T F
FE B P BRRF 38R AR T 28 BUA) B K R AR PR ER
SAERE YHABERMER N6
HE AL RBAREQFDEFIOGERBET
(ERER)RSE it 2 RImEREHEME
B WM ARENATEERAEMA
TEEHAERE - AERZA/SKFEHR
& ETRERERRBEEEAENETHNE
BRI E RS RR IR - BARR PR A] A/
MR ERSIE MRS ERAHEFNE
REXRAEFESREMBRRERERBLE
EMBRRAEENLBERTE  RABNE
RRAFTRRIEERK ©

Annual Report 2018 =2 — NE £



Indepndent Auitr’s Report a
Y8 3% B R R 5

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial

statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

From the matter communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine this matter that was of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and is therefore the key audit matter.
We describe this matter in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

in the

The engagement partner on the audit resulting

independent auditor’s report is Yuen Wing Hang.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’'000
M it AR¥TFT AR T
Revenue HEWA
— Goods and services - Em A% 5 114,088 79,168
Cost of sales and services £ & AR 75 B AR (60,066) (41,218)
Gross profit EX 54,022 37,950
Other income H b A 2,063 2,535
Impairment losses, net of reversal BEEE  REWES
on trade receivables and contract ERRAEHNEERT
assets (616) 1,077
Other gains and losses H b s M E 18 7 (3,063) 1,632
Distribution and selling expenses DHERIEEE R (11,505) (10,768)
Administrative expenses EREEA (13,730) (16,157)
Finance costs mEE A 8 (1,832) (2,069)
Profit before tax B %4 A& 25,339 14,200
Income tax (expense) credit FiEfH(B8R) KR 9 (3,136) 1,598
Profit and total comprehensive AFEERMNRZEBA
income for the year g 10 22,203 15,798
Earnings per share ST 13
- Basic (RMB cents) - ERNANEES) 2.54 1.83
- Diluted (RMB cents) - BEARED) 2.53 1.82

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i R & # (£ H) R AR QT
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At 31 December 2018 R=ZFE—/NF+-HA=+—H

Consolidated Statement of Finacial Position

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR FrT AREFT
Non-current Assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WMEREE 14 13,092 13,366
Intangible assets EEE 15 14,538 5,821
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE E 6 1,696 1,943
29,326 21,130
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories FE 336 446
Trade and other receivables JEUE 5 & H b BR 3 18 75,882 50,990
Contract assets AHMEE 19 1,129 -
Financial assets at fair value through BEAREFAEZ 2SR
profit or loss B E 17 237 305
Bank balances and cash RITEB MRS 20 45,648 35,034
123,232 86,775
Current Liabilities REBAaE
Trade and other payables JERTE S & EMERER 21 21,302 17,255
Amounts due to directors JEfFEE B 22 536 325
Amount due to immediate holding ENEZZERAGRE
company 23 12 I}
Borrowings BE 24 28,131 13,492
49,981 31,083
Net Current Assets REBEEFE 73,251 55,692
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities #ZEERABEE 102,577 76,822
Capital and Reserves BEXR G
Share capital f% A% 25 8,661 8,551
Reserves 1 1 41,723 16,799
Total Equity ERBE 50,384 25,350
Non-current Liabilities ERBERE
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIBEE 16 2,889 -
Borrowings =P 24 49,304 51,472
52,193 51,472
102,577 76,822

The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 212 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
20 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

HUNG YUNG LAI
DIRECTOR
REEE
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GERBREBHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

Share
Share Share  Statutory Shareholder's  Translation options  Accumulated
capital premium reserves  contribution reserve reserve losses Total
k& BOEE  iERE RRES  EXGE BRERR it ER &t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 MB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
ANREFT ANEETFT ANEETT ANREFT AEETT ABETT ARETT ARETT
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
(Hia)  (Witb) (Wi
At 1 January 2017 A o = 8,551 158,608 3,613 - 5217 31,472 (204,203) 3,258
Profit and total comprehensive REEREFR2ZERA
income for the year ek - - - - - - 15,798 15,798
Shareholder's contribution RRER - - - 786 - - - 786
Lapsed/expired of share options ~ AFEXRM/HE B
fi 8 - - - - - (3,176) 3,176 -
Recognition of equity-settled share-  #2IR1E £ € b 1 {3
based payments ERNAH - - - - - 5,508 - 5,508
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t§
+-A=1-H 8,551 158,608 3,613 786 5217 33,804 (185,229) 25,350
Profit and total comprehensive TEERFIRZERA
income for the year g - - - - - - 22,203 22,03
Exercise of share options TEEAP 2 BRE 110 2,837 - - - (936) - 2,01
Recognition of equity-settled BAREEENRY A
share-ased payments ERNHAH - - - - - 820 - 820
At 31 December 2018 NE
+-A=1-H 8,601 161,445 3,613 786 5217 33,688 (163,026) 50,384
SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED ¥ /& ¢ (% M) BB ER A T Annual Report 2018 =% — \E F
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in
rERkR%

EIE

Equit

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+1+—HIF&E

Notes:

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Companies Act”), share
premium is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
share premium and other reserves if (i) it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable value
of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital account.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment
enterprises in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory reserves, being an
enterprise expansion fund and a statutory surplus reserve fund which are
non-distributable. Appropriations to such reserves are made out of net
profit after taxation reported in the statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries while the amounts and allocation basis are decided by their
respective boards of directors annually. The statutory surplus reserve fund
can be used to make up their prior year losses, if any, and can be applied
in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue. The enterprise
expansion fund can be used for expanding the capital base of the PRC
subsidiaries by means of capitalisation issue.

On 30 September 2017, Mr. Hung Yung Lai, being the Chairman, executive
director and controlling shareholder of the Company, waived the balance
due to him of approximately RMB786,000. The amount has been capitalised
as shareholder’s contribution.

(a)

(b)

(@

BREARE-NN-FRFE(REE]D  BROEE
ADIRTARR - EZRRIATIER : #0OR S IR
% ARBETENBESEAR  RMEEEZA
BREKINEABEEACDETRAKRZ &5 A
KRR TG E IR SR A% S5k SABR 3 ) 8 & H b
BIEHDIK

BRETFEARANB(PEDIIRECEZEH
ERRERBE ARAZPEMBERRERL
MIBANAIDIKRZEERE  NEXBERESRAE
BHEE PR EZEREIBERDRTRNER
REEFBHRRZBHBERENTEN MEHERD
EEEMESENEETGTFRTE AT BB
BAURERME—FEZBR(WA) THERE
AEBETEBRR/EL - PEERESDEZEAAN L
BIBEATEMBLR CBEARER -

RZFB—EFNAA=+RH " REEBELE  ARAAX
B BITEERERER ReBRERIEHKOR
AR#786,0007T * ZHM R EHEERBRERTN
AARAE -
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Consoidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TFT AR TFor
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REZTH
Profit before tax B %4 B A 25,339 14,200
Adjustments for: FEE
Finance costs BEEH 1,832 2,069
Interest income FLE WA (33) (21)
Exchange loss (gain) PE 548 5 (=) 2,203 (3,153)
Depreciation of property, - -BELREETE
plant and equipment 1,051 789
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEER#H 1,365 513
Loss on disposal of property, LEME BERZEERE
plant and equipment - 31
Impairment loss, net of reversal on trade WA B - Bk X R A TE
receivables and contract assets subject to FEBAZERES
ECL EREANEERE 616 (1,077)
Equity-settled share-based AR 4 E AR D B E TR AT 5K
payment expenses 2 820 5,508
Loss on fair value changes of BRAREBEHABRZZSRE
financial assets at fair value EAABEEZEHNEIR
through profit or loss 82 362
Inventories written down FERE - 294
Waiver of other payables FA 00 E 4th FE S 5K IE - (26)
Operating cash flows before movements Y EE L2 HA 2 KLERE
in working capital mE 33,275 19,489
Decrease (increase) in inventories FE R A Em) 110 (313)
Increase in trade and other receivables JiE I B 5 K B b BR ZR A8 N (25,503) (8,540)
Increase in contract assets BHEEEM (1,134) -
Increase in trade and other payables FEHE 5 I E b AR 38 A0 5,836 4,301
Cash from operations REMBRE 12,584 14,937
Income tax paid BEMFTEH - (2,006)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& ZBHFE2REFHE 12,584 12,931

96 . SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #i 78+ (%£8) RHAR A
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Consolidated Sttement of Cash Flows

-

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =L —\F+=FA =+ —HIFFEZE

2018 2017
—E-N\F ol
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETFTT AR T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Development costs paid Mg BRI (10,082) (4,532)
Purchase of property, BEME  WENEE
plant and equipment (777) (6,796)
Interest received 28 FE 33 21
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME  WMERZEMSE
and equipment RIB - 135
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEHFA-R S FE (10,826) (11,172)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mMEED
Proceeds from loans from a director EEEEMSNE 10,833 8,084
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEMISHIEA 11,000 15,000
Proceeds from exercise of share options 17150 i AR 4 P45 SR 18 2,011 -
Advances from directors EFRMBE B 495 325
Repayment of loans from a director EBEEXREE (3,630) (1,000)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTES (11,000) (9,992)
Repayment of advances from directors BEEFZHN (287) (259)
Interest paid AT F & (566) (2,069)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RETERESELFHE 8,856 10,089
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRREEEYZEMER
EQUIVALENTS 10,614 11,848
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHACRERAEEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 35,034 23,186
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END £Xk>BE& R
OF THE YEAR, REEEY
represented by bank balances and cash BRI SR RIS 45,648 35,034
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

1.

GENERAL

Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” in the annual report. Its immediate holding
Limited,
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its ultimate

company is Goldcorp Industrial a company
controlling party is Mr. Hung Yung Lai, who is also the

chairman and an executive director of the Company.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are development and sales of
software products, sales of related hardware products
and provision of technical support services. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 29.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"),
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

which is the same as the functional

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board ("IASB”) for the first time in the current year:

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i R & # (£ H) R AR QT
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Notes to the Cosolidated Finnial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =L —\F+=FA =+ —HIFFEZE

-

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (Continued)

IFRS 9
IFRS 15

IFRIC = Int 22

Amendment to IFRS 2

Amendment to IFRS 4

Amendment to IAS 28

Amendment to IAS 40

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transaction

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts

As part of Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new and

amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no material

impact on the Group's financial performance and positions

for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied IFRS 15 for the first time in
the current year. IFRS 15 superseded IAS 18 Revenue,

IAS 11
interpretations.

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

Construction Contracts and the

related

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i & (@) BB ER A =

& R 3 ET B M8

] BB B S R
2R ([E PRI R E 28 (&)

REFERHERZHITREBTER

P EER ()

ER#BHaEER SRR
BRI HREENE15%

ERVBREREZEE

- REENY
I E L
(B31%)

BIIR B 75 3 5 22 R B 4%
CHES

BIFR & 5 £ R 5 28%

CHES)

BIFR & 5 £ R 5405}
CHES)

BRI mEE

ERIA
REEF AN E R

el

NEXHRBIRE

BONRRBOABRHE

T8 PR B R B s SR 5 E
FORSR T EK—fiE
RERMBEREERSE
ARRBED

TE-MFEZT-NFE
HEENEREENE
EHEH -5

RENEEY

RAFEE R M

RETERYEREENHAKERE
AR BEFEZHBRRE LMK,
AGAMBBRERAMBIWBELEERY
@

2.1 EBRBHEEREISHEIKEEF
BRI H W 55 |

AEBERAKNEE B IR ERBE R
BREERNFISH - BERMEREE
AIE55R A ERA BB & 5T 2RI 81857
[Weak |~ BIFR & 5T 2RI SBR[ 12 58
BRIARBERE -




100 .

e B AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

The Group has applied IFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January
2018. Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening accumulated losses (or other
components of equity, as appropriate) and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore,
in accordance with the transition provisions in IFRS
15, the Group has elected to apply the Standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed
at 1 January 2018 and has used the practical expedient
for all contract modifications that occurred before
the date of initial application, the aggregate effect
of all of the modification was reflected at the date
of initial application. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under IAS 18 Revenue
and IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following
major source which arise from contracts with
customers:

e  Sales of software products

e  Sales of related hardware products

e Provision of technical support services
Information about the Group’s performance obligations

and the accounting policies resulting from application
of IFRS 15 are disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs"”) (Continued)

REFERHERZHITREBTER
B3 SR (F)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 EBBEHREEREISHIKEEF

2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
IFRS 15

There is no impact of transition to IFRS 15 on
accumulated losses at 1 January 2018.

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 January 2018. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

BRIH W25 1)

P %8 & 1 B 5 51 75 48 5 2B R E 1538
ZEEBA

& P BB B 75 3R 5 R SR 155 3 &
HAKER-_ZT—-N\F-HA—RHZZ
SAERELAEARE -

THBEHR T N\F—A—RBZE&
EMBARKRPERZ SBEAMIEH
MAE - REXEHTENRBLT
BREEN -

Carrying
amounts
previously Carrying
reported at amounts under
31 December IFRS 15 at
2017 Reclassification 1 January 2018*
REARNERS
B 8] 5155 B
RAR=Z-tF —E-N\F
+ZA=t-HE —-R—g*
BHEEE EXNLE WREE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000
i ARETFT ARETFT ARETT
Current Assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables ERESREMBER 50,990 (1,788) 49,202
Contract assets AHEE - 1,788 1,788
* The amounts in this column are before the adjustments from the application * UL Y SR R A FE A B PR B IS R 2

of IFRS 9.

Note (@) As at 1 January 2018, RMB1,788,000 previously included
in trade and other receivables were reclassified to contract
assets under IFRS 15.

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying
IFRS 15 on the Group’'s consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018 for each
of the line items affected. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs"”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
IFRS 15 (Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& 3R] K RS 7T B BR B A 3R 5
A ([E R B 3 3R 5 2 8 (&)

RAEFERHERZHITREBTER
| EER (&)

2.1 EBRBEHEEREISHIKEEFEF
BRB W a5 |(E)

Y] %8 J&E 1 B 5 1 75 48 5 2B R E 1535
L EBA(E)

HRESHBRAROE

position

Amounts without
application of
As reported Adjustments IFRS 15
KR AER
BBREER
W E R e BR2EH
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
L3 AREFT AREFT AREFT

Current Assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables EIRE 5 R EME T (@) 75,882 1,129 77,011
Contract assets BHNEE (@ 1,129 (1,129) -

Note (a): As at 31 December 2018, RMB1,129,000 were classified as
contract assets under IFRS 15.

There is no impact of applying IFRS 15 on the Group's
net cash from operating activities in consolidated
statement of cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =L —\F+=FA =+ —HIFFEZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied IFRS 9
Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other IFRSs. IFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for (1) the classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities, (2) expected
credit losses ("ECL") for financial and contract assets
and other items and (3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with
transition provisions set out in IFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurements (including impairment
under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments that
have not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018
and has not applied the requirements to instruments
that have already been derecognised as at 1 January
2018. The difference between carrying amounts as
at 31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as
at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening
accumulated losses and other components of equity,
without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information
was prepared under IAS 39 Ffinancial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of IFRS
9 are disclosed in note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
IFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
and other items subject to ECL under IFRS 9 and IAS
39 at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018.

2. BAHITR
% B (B B B 3% 3R

18 57 B B B 7% 5

HEADE)

RAEFERHERZHITREBTER
| EER (&)

2.2 BRHBHEERFIFH BT A
(%)

B X JE B B BT 75 R 2 PE Rl 3 938 AT

B Y

B2 488
P&

#E

TRBTEREERTRAEBUAR
HitBERMEHREAEH (=T N
F-A—R)REERMHHREER
Fo% MBI g R ERIFE395R L T
EERAEXNETHOBRGE -

Financial
assets at
amortised
Financial cost
assets  (previously
Held for at FVTPL  classified as
trading Contract  required by loans and
investment assets IFRS 9  receivables)
BREBRE REHERXK
EHEIHR HEZER
RERDAE BE(KADE
KEEE FABEZ REXK
RE ANEE tRHEE EWE)
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFZT
Closing balance at RZZB-tE+ZA=+-HZ
31 December 2017 - IAS 39 BRGH - ERETER
%395 305 - - 80,631
Effect arising from initial application B XEREBREEREER
of IFRS 15 ERELENTE - 1,788 - (1,788)
Reclassification from held for trading HEEEREEH I E
investment (305) - 305 -
Opening balance at R-ZEB-NF-F-B2
1 January 2018 LRI - 1,788 305 78,843
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =L —\F+=FA =+ —HIFFEZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

2.2 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
IFRS 9 (Continued)

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL")

The Group has reassessed its investments in equity securities
classified as held for trading under IAS 39 as if the Group had
purchased these investments at the date of initial application.
Based on the facts and circumstances as at the date of initial
application, RMB305,000 of the Group's investments were held
for trading and continued to be measured at FVTPL.

(b) Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
ECL that uses a lifetime ECL for all trade receivables and
contract assets. Except for those which had been determined
as credit impaired under IAS 39, the remaining balances are
grouped based on past due analysis. The contract assets relate
to unbilled work in progress and have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types
of contracts. The Group has therefore estimated the expected
loss rates for the receivables and the contract assets on the
same basis.

Except for those which had been determined as credit impaired
under IAS 39, ECL for other financial assets at amortised
cost, including other receivables, bank balances and cash are
assessed on 12m ECL basis as there had been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 January 2018, no additional credit loss allowance has
been recognised against accumulated losses.

Notes to the Consolidated Finanial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. FEAHIIRELIETERR RS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING ZR (BRI ELER ) (E)
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

New and Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily RAEFEBHEMZHT R LETERE
effective for the current year (Continued) M mEER(E)
2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of 2.3 FEFFEHER - (5FTRZEEY
financial position arising from the application HAGENBERIERELEZR
of all new standards, amendments and
interpretation
As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting BRI AEBESH R 228 - B
policies above, the opening consolidated statement of M2EaWBRAKREBIESY -
financial position had to be restated. The following REFIEXHEBREZEHRAE
table show the adjustments recognised for each of the UTTEERILTEEREZES -

line items affected. Line items that were not affected
by the changes have not been included.

31 December 1 January
2017 IFRS 15 IFRS 9 2018
“E-+tF BRUBERE BRUBEE —E-N\F
TZA=t-B ERHE5HE  FHFR —R—H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFrT AREFT ARETFT

(Audited) (Restated)

(&%) (&E5))

Held for trading investments #{FE FH% & 305 - (305) -
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEFAERZ

TREE - - 305 305

Trade and other receivables  EWE 5 N EM IR R 50,990 (1,788) - 49,202

Contract assets BHEE - 1,788 - 1,788
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =L —\F+=FA =+ —HIFFEZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

IFRS 16 Leases'
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
IFRIC — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments'

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business?
Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture*

Definition of Material®

Amendments to
[FRS 10 and IAS 28

Amendments to
IAS 1 and IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle'

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or

Settlement'
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
3 Effective for acquisition date on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to IFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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108 .

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

2.

& 3R] K RS 7T B BR B A 3R 5
A ([E R B 3 3R 5 2 8 (&)

BB EREERF16HKEE]

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the BRI 1S S R E165 51 T — E4RE
identification of lease arrangements and accounting RALFERNEEZHAREREERE AR
treatments for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 will A ARG E A o B B & %R

supersede IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash
flows, operating lease payments are currently presented
as operating cash flows. Under the application of IFRS 16,
lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Under IAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset
and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold
lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of IFRS
16 may result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depends on whether the Group presents right-to-use
assets separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i R & # (£ H) R AR QT

FRNEERE KSR B R S54RI
FIRIEE | REERE -

REMBEEREEEEEMEES  AHE
AEEHLHEERBEMEZED €
WM MAEABEAZHE K AR
EREEEMBEABZEARK -

ERREEVSRRAGE  HEEX
A(ZETHIIMERBR) B RFIFTER
BMEEBETE AENHEABENEMN
AEFLHAE HEAGVIHEARX
MEOHEHEFRENREFHE - £& - 5L A
EREEFREANEECTNTE (BT
Hip) HEHEAR - AR RENEM
FOAKRBREHENKBAEREER
EREZS - RIEMBERRMGHREER
F165kk - BHERBEEMNHEENKK
PTEENAAEEZRERSRERT
MRS R BED

REEERGTERFET7H  AEEEHE
ERAMARERALT OB EEELH
RENHERBERR -HEER —HEMA
AREHEAG ERAEKRMERSEE
QBRI EHZEEEZ D BHR
BEEY BHRARAKEORZIHRN
HEMNHEBEEMETIZ2IMERESR
EMHEAZEFERE) -

Annual Report 2018 =2 — NE £



Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

Notes to the Cosolidated Finial Statemets
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =L —\F+=FA =+ —HIFFEZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in IAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or
a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

As at 31 2018,
cancellable operating lease commitments of approximately
RMB1,669,000 (2017: RMB1,804,000)
note 28. A preliminary assessment indicates that these

December the Group has non-

as disclosed in

arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of IFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all
these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term
leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of approximately RMB181,000 as rights under
leases to which IAS 17 applies. Based on the definition
of lease payments under IFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may
be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits paid would be considered as additional lease
payments and included in the carrying amount of right-of-
use assets.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above.

2.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHEE

120,

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 /mpairment of
Assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value

measurements are categorised into Level 1,

measurements are observable and the significance of the

inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices

included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Group. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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e B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Company gains control until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

112 . SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #i 5|8 ¢F (%8) RHERA

3.

TEESTBERE)

BOEEE)

WEERBRBER LI =ZHZEGEE
FoES A ETREIRES  AAKE
CENMFEERSERRRET -

MEAREAREREHZHEARN
BHIRERBAFAR  LEAKERX
EHZMBRR MG ERLL - B8
ﬁ?'iﬁ%%%iﬁ%%%%ﬁﬂmw
ARRXHaAEERGENEER

EEK%EK&@@%W%AEEEE
LA ERaE R E2ERER

BakHEME2EKESEEBBRARQA
BEARFEZERER - ESEHI R
B EMES WBARZEZE
WHBENEBREAARI B ARIEE
[ HE 2 o

FER HMBARNMBE®RE
f’EﬁEJ%%é CAEEEBREASEED
SRR ER K-

BRAEERERA ZHR ﬁ 712 20
EEANRFIEEE - BF  #a - WA
MY MBS REANAHE2EHE -

Annual Report 2018 =2 — NE £



-
.

Notes to the Cosolidated Finnial Statements
b Y

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =L —\F+=FA =+ —HIFFEZE

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of IFRS 15 in accordance with transitions
in note 2.1)

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of IFRS 15 in accordance with transitions
in note 2.1) (Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations (to specify), the Group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell a promised good or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services
to the customer.
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Notes to the Cosolidated Finial Statemets
b Y

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =L —\F+=FA =+ —HIFFEZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of IFRS 15 in accordance with transitions
in note 2.1) (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input method,
which is to recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the
satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best depict

the Group's performance in transferring control of goods
or services.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration (to specify),
the Group estimates the amount of consideration to which
it will be entitled using either (a) the expected value method
or (b) the most likely amount, depending on which method
better predicts the amount of consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included
in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that such an inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently

resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes
in circumstances during the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of IFRS 15 in accordance with transitions
in note 2.1) (Continued)

3.

TEESTBERE)

EFE AW E (RBME2.18 % & A E R
BB EEREISHR)(F)

Existence of significant financing component 77 E X G &A1
In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts REEXZER WRAEFERBE MK

the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the
Group with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing component.
A significant financing component may exist regardless of
whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by the
parties to the contract.

For contracts where the Group transferred the associated
goods or services before payments from customers in which
the Group adjusts for the promised amount of consideration
for significant financing components, the Group applies
a discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. The Group recognises interest income
during the period between the payment from customers
and the transfer of the associated goods or services.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a
principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).
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Notes to the Cosolidated Finial Statemets
b Y

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =L —\F+=FA =+ —HIFFEZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of IFRS 15 in accordance with transitions
in note 2.1) (Continued)

Principal versus agent (Continued)

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service
by another party. In this case, the Group does not control
the specified good or service provided by another party
before that good or service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified
goods or services to be provided by the other party.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as
described below.

Revenue from sales of hardware and software products
is recognised when the goods are delivered and title has
passed upon customers’ acceptance.

Revenue from a contract to provide technical support is
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract. Servicing fees are recognised by reference to the
proportion of the total cost of providing the servicing for
the product sold.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Service income for provision of other technical support is
recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Cosolidated Finial Statemets
b Y

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =L —\F+=FA =+ —HIFFEZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire property is accounted as
an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element at initial

recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model.
When the payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the leasehold land and building elements, the entire
property is generally classified as if the leasehold land is

under finance lease.
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEHHEE)
(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued) SNE(E)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or
loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives
of the related assets.
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate
of interest is treated as a government grant, measured as
the difference between proceeds received and the fair value
of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities
employee benefits are measured at the present value of

recognised in respect of other long-term
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that another IFRS requires or permits their

inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EEEHHEE)
(Continued)
Share-based payments URHBRBERNAR

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share options
reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where that
fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted, measured at the date the counterparty renders the
service. The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses (unless the services qualify for
recognition as assets).

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGHBEE)

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued) HiEE)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences BLEBESERAR/RGCEHBRRAE

between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure

attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired

separately.

Impairment on tangible, intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible, intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use
are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever
there is an indication that they may be impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible, intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets
are estimated individually, when it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible, intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TESHBRE)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) ERMIAE)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when CRHEAELERABESEERK AT
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions BEANBEXMETHN R TR - FIEAR
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of BFEEZEMEERRSAMABREIL
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade R - BHREEBERARETSHAISE

date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or PlETYU 2 BEARKEECSREEER
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within &

the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2.2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2.2) (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured

at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/

initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income (“OCI") if that equity investment is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

e |t is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2.2) (Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt instruments/
receivables subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEETHEGE)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) EMITAE)

Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial THEENSHEREEE(REN7F2.2

assets (upon application of IFRS 9 in accordance with Y38 6 X JE R 2 B B 7 3R 25 P R E 9 3 )

transitions in note 2.2) (Continued) (&)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL (i) BRAREFAEGZEMEE
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being NEEREEK AT EREANE
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated FAEMEERERETAEAR
as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. B AEMEZEAREZENERE

EH{Z\\}LI: u_l—)\TE D_I—E"
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at BRAABEFABERZZEREERS
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value REBROHAALETE EALAR
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net BRHHEFEEREEPRR - RNIE
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any EERNKEREEFERERS
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and BEERDMOT MR BLFE 5
is included in the “other gains and losses” line item. ATE M= Kk BB — -

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with 2 & R B (IR IR BT 5L 269 48 1K X JE

transitions in accordance with note 2) FH B R B 75 3R & 2E R E997)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial 2N 65 [ B AR 1R B B B R s ME B 957 A

assets which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9 TRENSHEE(BEERES R EM

(including trade and other receivables, contract assets and R AHNEERBIEHNIRES)WNIE

bank balances and cash). The amount of ECL is updated at ,HH%EE!?EEE REEEE  EHEEE

each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since KNS ERSREDHEN  URBE

initial recognition. ERBABVIRERARNEE o
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHEE)
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) ERITAE(E)
Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these assets
are assessed collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEFEHERAE)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SRIAE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with £ E A8 (IR 15 BT AL 289 148 1K X JE
transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued) JHEY B B 7% 30 27 2E R 2998 ) (48 )
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) () EERRABEINE)
e an actual or expected significant deterioration in e BEHRAKEHEEMNERNIER
the operating results of the debtor; E-pNEL
e an actual or expected significant adverse change e HBHEBKARCTEEBEARN
in the regulatory, economic, or technological BENREBTROEBAMTE
environment of the debtor that results in a B REARMERRNERL
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet TEERE K TNF Z& o

its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, Em LA HEROE  AEER
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased EAXHMFEEBE308E 58
significantly since initial recognition when contractual [2, b B ¥ 6 W R LA SR 2 K E hn -
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the BRIEREEBEESERAEZERER
Group has reasonable and supportable information that Al T ERIE R °

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the AEBTHEZANUNZINEERR
criteria used to identify whether there has been a BEEREEMOEE2 B - BiE
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as FIEE(NEE)RBERIZEERE S
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of BRI ERNEERRAEBIZM -

identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+—HIF&E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

Definition of default

(ii)

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into

account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:
(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over three years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =L —\F+=FA =+ —HIFFEZE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater
for cases where evidence at the individual instrument
level may not yet be available, the financial instruments
are grouped on the following basis:

e  Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s
trade receivables and contract assets are each
assessed as a separate group. Other receivables
and bank balances are assessed for expected
credit losses on an individual basis);

e  Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e  External credit ratings where available.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application IFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances
are recognised at the higher of the amount of the loss
allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9; and
the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over the
guarantee period.

For undrawn loan commitments, the loss allowances
are the present value of the difference between:

(@) the contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group if the holder of the loan commitment
draws down the loan; and

(b) the cash flows that the Group expects to receive
if the loan is drawn down.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables and contract assets where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+—HIF&E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL") and loans and receivables. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when

the financial asset is (i) held for trading or (ii) it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

e on initial recognition, it is a part of an identified
portfolio of financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHEE)
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) ERITAE(E)
Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)

EHEEMTERARKTE (R =F—N
F—H—HERBE R 53 &EREIH
A1) (%)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

142

(i)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held
for trading (or contingent consideration that may
be received by an acquirer as part of a business
combination) may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly

reduces a measurement or recognition

inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is

evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance

with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the

grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets and is included
in the other gains and losses line item. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 31b.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+—HIF&E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

(i)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables and bank balances are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9
on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHEE)
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) ERITAE(E)
Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9
on 1 January 2018) (Continued)
For all other financial

assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:
issuer or

e significant financial difficulty of the

counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period
of 120 to 180 days, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of IFRS 9
on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable
is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
cost.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including borrowings, trade and other
payables, amounts due to directors and amount due to

immediate holding company are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =L —\F+=FA =+ —HIFFEZE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

(a) Provision of ECL for trade receivables and contract
assets

The Group uses provision matrix to estimate ECL
for the trade receivables and contract assets as at
31 December 2018. The provision rates are based
on internal credit ratings as groupings of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on the Group’s historical default rates
taking into consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable information and
that is available without undue cost or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables and contract assets with credit impaired are
assessed for ECL individually.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4.
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(a) Provision of ECL for trade receivables and contract
assets (Continued)

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables and contract assets are
disclosed in notes 18, 19 and 31 respectively.

(b) Allowance for doubtful debts

Prior to the application of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018,
when there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group’s management assesses the recoverability
and determines impairment of trade receivables
in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 3. Such estimation is based on the credit
history of its customers and the current market
conditions. Management reviews the debtor settlement
status periodically and reassesses the sufficiency
of allowance for doubtful debts accordingly. If the
customer’s financial position were to deteriorate,
actual impairment loss or write off would be higher
than estimated. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying
amount of trade receivables is RMB45,771,000, net of
allowance for doubtful debts of RMB581,000.

(c) Impairment on intangible asset

Determining whether intangible asset is impaired
requires an estimation of recoverable amount of
discounted cash flow to the carrying amount of
intangible asset. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
results in downward revision of future cash flows, a
material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of
intangible asset is approximately RMB14,538,000
(31 December 2017: RMB5,821,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note

15.
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5. REVENUE
A. For the year ended 31 December 2018 A.

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers

Notes to the Consolidated Finanial Statements

5. SHEWA

BE-B2-N\F+-A=1t—-HILEE

() BHEFEHNHERA

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-Z-\5t-A=t-BHL%¥E

Sales of Provision
Sales of related of technical
software  hardware support
products products services
HERH  HEHEE  RER®
Em BAER XERH
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ANEEFT AEEFT AREFT
Sales of products HEEM 10,936 6,831 -
Provision of services: R MR
- Development and installation of bank -AERERRTES
transaction software R - - 39,330
- Outsourcing financial services for bank - ARITEPRENE
customers SRRE - - 36,372
- Development, installation and - TERGESH
maintenance of payment software Bl ER
system - - 20,619
Total st 10,936 6,831 96,321
Geographical markets WEm G
Mainland China A i 6,604 6,831 96,321
Taiwan = 4,332 - -
Total st 10,936 6,831 96,321
Timing of revenue recognition HERARANERE
A point in time s ) 2 10,936 6,831 -
Over time RE R - - 96,321
Total @zt 10,936 6,831 96,321
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5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. SHEWA(Z)

A. For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued) A. BE-ZZEZ-N\FE+=-HA=+—HLHE
E (&)
(i) BITEHEEFHEHERE

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

customers

Sales of software products with maintenance
services (multiple performance obligations)

The maintenance service is considered to be a
distinct service as it is both regularly supplied
by the Group to other customers on a stand-
alone basis and is available for customers from
other providers in the market. Transaction price
is allocated between sales of software products
and the maintenance services on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Revenue relating to the
maintenance services is recognised over time
and would be reclassified as part of provision of
technical support services. The transaction price
allocated to these services is recognised on a
straight line basis over the period of service.

Sales of related hardware products (revenue
recognised at one point in time)

The Group mainly sells related hardware products,
e.g. POS machines to banks and high tech
companies directly.

For sales of related hardware products, revenue
is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been
delivered to customers specific location. The
normal credit term is 120 to 180 days upon
delivery.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =L —\F+=FA =+ —HIFFEZE

5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. SHEWA(E)

A. BE-ZE-N\F+ZA=+—-HLHF
E (&)

A. For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)

(i) BITEEFHENEMEE)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with

customers (Continued)

Provision of technical support services (revenue
recognised over time)

The Group provides technical support services
to customers. Such services are recognised as
a performance obligation satisfied over time as
the Group creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced. Revenue is recognised for these
technical support services based on the stage of
completion of the contract using input method.
A contract asset, net of contract liability, is
recognised over the period in which the technical
support services are performed representing the
Group's right to consideration for the services
performed because the rights are conditioned
on the Group’s future performance in achieving
specified milestones. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional. Retention receivables,
are classified as contract assets, which ranges
from one to two years from the date of the
practical completion of the support services. The
relevant amount of contract asset is reclassified
to trade receivables when the defect liability
period expires. The defect liability period serves
as an assurance that the technical support
services performed comply with agreed upon
specifications and such assurance cannot be
purchased separately.

In some circumstances, the Group received the
advance payment which considered containing
significant financing component and accordingly

the amount of consideration is adjusted for the REBEFETURAE 95tk
effects of the time value of money taking into AEBENEERR -
consideration the credit characteristics of the
Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. HEWRAE)
A. For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued) A BEZZ—-N\F+ZA=+—HL#F
E(E)
(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) 7 EHEEFANZEGETEY
performance obligations for contracts with BEAHNXEE
customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining RZE—-—NF+ZA=+—H"
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially RGERIPEEERBHEML
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2018 and the (REKKBEARZEK)  T8H
expected timing of recognising revenue are as RSO RERAT
follows:
Provision
of technical
support services
R Sl
X ERB
RMB’'000
ARBTFT
Within one year —F UK 6,941
More than one year but not —FUA EEIEBAME
more than two years 456
More than two years ME 1,007
8,404
These amounts disclosed above do not include ENEENZEF2EIEES
transaction price allocated to performance HMEENEANXZZEE B
obligations which have been satisfied but not HETDERERTERER
yet recognised due to variable consideration il 70 8 AR B FR o
constraint.
All software installation services are for periods FrEE L EREH B —F
of one year or less. As permitted under IFRS 15, gk LATR o o 40 B B B R R S
the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied BIZEISRART  DEEERERE
contracts is not disclosed. AR S EAR L RS EE -
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5.
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REVENUE (Continued)

B. For the year ended 31 December 2017

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as
follows:

5. SHEWAE)

B. BZ-E—+tH&+=-A=+—HL

FE

REBFRERADHMOT :

Year ended
31 December
2017
BE-Z—+t#F
+=ZHA=+—-H
LEE
RMB’'000
AREFT

— Sales of software products
— Sales of related hardware products
— Provision of technical support services

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Company’s executive directors,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered
or provided.

Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating segments
under IFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows:

1. Sales of software products

2. Sales of related hardware products

3. Provision of technical support services

No operating segments have been aggregated in arising at
the reportable segments of the Group.

- HEHMFEM
- HEHEBREGEH
- BB XERS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DHEER(E)
Segment revenue and results DTHMEEWARESE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and REEZREERTZERD MBI HHEEW
results by operating and reportable segment: AREEZDTWAT:
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z—-N\F+=-A=+—-HLEFE

Sales of  Provision

Sales of related of technical

software  hardware support
products products services Total

HEBM HEHB RAUERW
Em BH#Em XERB &t

RMB’000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTTE ARETRT AREFRT ARETRH

External sales and total revenue

— segment revenue

SEGMENT RESULTS

Unallocated other income

Unallocated other gains and losses

Unallocated corporate expenses
Finance costs

Group's profit before tax

HIMEERBHEERA
- DEBEELA 10,936 6,831 96,321 114,088

DEEE 3,410 2,423 24,959 30,792

AHREEMIMA 2,063

AR EMbE R EE (3,063)
AOMEERST (2,621)
MEER (1,832)
AEBROBRB AR 25,339
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6.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER(E)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DMHEERAREE(Z)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z-—tHF+=-A=+—-HLFE
Sales of Provision
Sales of related  of technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
HERM  HEEE RN
Em BHER XERH a&t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARKTFT
External sales and total revenue HIMNEERBHEWA
- segment revenue - DEEERA 12,525 4,174 62,469 79,168
SEGMENT RESULTS GEES 3,103 1,154 13,157 17,414
Unallocated other income AHREEMIMA 2,535
Unallocated other gains and losses AoE B s REE 1,632
Unallocated corporate expenses RAOBEPERZT (5,312)
Finance costs BREER (2,069)
Group's profit before tax A5 E R B A A

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies as described
in note 3. Segment results represents the profit earned
by each segment without allocation of finance costs,
unallocated corporate expenses, other income and other
gains and losses. This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

The CODM makes decisions according to operating results
of each segment. No analysis of segment asset and segment
liability is presented as the CODM does not regularly review
such information for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment. Therefore, only segment

revenue and segment results are presented.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

156 .

6. DEER(E)

Other segment information H 55 7B & R
Sales of  Provision
Sales of related of technical
software  hardware support
products products services Total
HEBM HEHB REUEHm
Em BH#ER XERE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANRETFT ARETFT AREFT ARETFT
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-Z—N\F+=H
=+-BLFE
Amounts included in the measure of BERFEIPEEZ
segment results: A
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  BEREETE
equipment 101 63 887 1,051
Amortisation of intangible assets BRAEHH 131 81 1,153 1,365
Impairment losses on trade receivables and R IEZERHNEKEZ S
contract assets recognised in profit or RARENEE
loss magwa 67 42 593 702
Impairment losses on trade receivables and FMEZ BRI EUNE 5
contract assets reversed in profit of loss ~ BRHRAKNEE
/Jﬁ BEAR (8) (5) (73) (86)
Share-based payment expenses (excluding — PARX 17 & Z 5 4 57 7 52
expenses recognised in corporate (TBEERELE
expenses) ) 29 18 256 303
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ-E—t&+=H
:+ —H .ItEFE
Amounts included in the measure of BERIEIBEEZ
segment results: RIE:
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BEREENE
equipment 125 42 622 789
Amortisation of intangible assets EVEEHH 81 27 405 513
Impairment losses on trade receivables REZBENEKES
reversed in profit or loss 3 TA/JWE BB (170) (57) (850) (1,077)
Share-based payment expenses (excluding AR 7 A& 5 (4 5 5 52
expenses recognised in corporate (T &ﬁ%ﬁ@ REdE
expenses) f) 322 107 1,605 2,034
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers is all
generated from customers located in the Mainland China
and Taiwan.

All non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC
by location of assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers from sales of software products,
related hardware products, provision of technical support
services of the corresponding years contributing over 10%
of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

DEER(EZ)

wEZER
REBERAIINRELZHERARGHEH
R REENEE -
REBHBERSDEEIREEE I E
DR AEIERA -

FEEFER
REBRAENELZEHERGER 18

BAEEERNMEEENSZERS ZWA
ERBBAKEE10%MT:

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

2018 2017

—E-NF —F—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTT ABETF T

Customer A EFHF 39,609 15,467

Customer B BERPZ N/A 8 R * 12,885
* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total * HEFE M A M5 7R 5 B 4B U A10% A | o

revenue of the Group.
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7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

7. Hitm REE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR F T

Loss on fair value changes of EANRBEFAERZZH
financial assets at FVTPL EEANBEEZEIHNEGIE (82) (362)
Exchange (loss) gain & W (B K) e (2,977) 2,304
Inventories written down FTERE - (294)

Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEKIZE
plant and equipment =iz} - (31
Others Hi (4) 15
(3,063) 1,632
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WMEEHR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BFT ARBFor
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZFE 566 344
Interest on loans from a director E=EEEZNE 1,266 1,725
1,832 2,069
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9.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT)

9. FIBEHER(ER)

2018 2017
—E-N\E e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT AR¥Fr
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT") FEBEMRSH

(IEEMEHD
— Current year - KNFEE - -
- Underprovision in prior years -BAFERETR - 345
- 345

Deferred taxation (Note 16) i E T IE (H it 16)
— Current year - KEE 3,136 (1,943)
3,136 (1,598)

Hangzhou Singlee Technology Company Limited (“Singlee
Technology”), a subsidiary of the Company, was established
in Hangzhou, the PRC, with statutory tax rate of 25%.
Singlee Technology is regarded as a High and New
Technology Enterprise defined by Zhejiang Finance Bureau,
Administrator of Local Taxation of Zhejiang Municipality
and Zhejiang Municipal office of the State Administration
of Taxation and is therefore entitled to 15% preferential
tax rate for the PRC EIT for three years starting from
2013. During the year ended 31 December 2016, it has
been approved by Zhejiang Finance Bureau, Administrator
of Local Taxation of Zhejiang Municipality and Zhejiang
Municipal office of the State Administration of Taxation
for extending three more years to 2019. Accordingly, the
tax rate for Singlee Technology is 15% for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017.

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the
applicable tax rate of Hangzhou Singlee Software Company
Limited (“Singlee Software”), Beijing Singlee Yin Tong
Information Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Singlee”) and Xin
Yintong Technology Co., Ltd. (“Xin YinTong"”) is 25% for
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

MMFAE B R QG (AR D AR
DRIRFEMIMNKLZH B AR - AR
25% K TE B AT o BN BB LA
WR - MImMAHBITRE REKR
BRBRHIETHRNBAZERE R/
Rttt WME-Z—=FBi=-F8#
BEEFREDERGRIS%E BT X o &
E-E-XRNF+-_A=+t—HILFE %
BECENIVER HImHSHB
TG R B RSB QBRI E ™ IRAT I
AREWELEE=FE_T—NF - Kt -
HE_Z-\FrRZZE—tF+A=+
—BIEFE AR 2 R R15% o

REFEEEMAERE  BE-FT—/\F
R_ZB—tF+_A=+—-HIEFE M
JNER A S B R AT (T F D -~ bR

A ESRBE B R MARAR ([AERFHF )

MEEBEEARAR(HER])ZE
A EB25% °

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i & (£E) R ER A 7

i’
L

" ’




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (Continued)

No provision for PRC EIT during the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 as the assessable profits
has been wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward
from previous years or some subsidiaries had no assessable
profits.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had no estimated assessable profits arising from
Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017.

The tax charge (credit) for the year is reconciled to the profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

9.

FREHRER(ER)(E)

HE-Z—)\FER=-ZFE—tF+=-A=+
—BIEFE BERPECEMSBR
BE AARIHENOREFAEN
Mg EERS Rk E TWE QR I E
FERBL T o

HAREERBEE-_E—\ER-_T—+
FH-A=T—ALFEIEREBELE
HETERB AT WAL EBREBFEH
TEL B -

AEERBAXH (ER) BR6Ba N EM
EERERZFBRAGN 2 HERMOT

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—LF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AE®Fr
Profit before tax B %2 Al A 25,339 14,200
Tax charge at enterprise income tax rate at A2 FTEFE F £15%
15% (2017: 15%) (Note) —E—tF:15%)
FECMIEXH
(Kt ax) 3,801 2,130
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax DA RBUWA 2 7 52 &
purpose (1,762) (1,108)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax 7~ AJ 0% 59 32 2 i 7 52 2
purpose 1,067 1,657
Underprovision in prior years BEFENRBERETR - 345
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTIAEE 2B
& 731 96
Utilisation of tax losses previously not ERBTARERTRIBEE
recognised 2o BRE (588) (4,718)
Others Hib (113) -
Tax charge (credit) for the year REEMIBAZH K R) 3,136 (1,598)

Note: Applicable income tax rate of 15% (2017: 15%) represents the WeE: BEBABHEEEIS% (ZF—£F 15%) 15
relevant income tax rate of Singlee Technology, the subsidiary of the RARMBE AR A E R 2 HBREBH
Company which generates majority of the Group’s assessable profit. X ZRARARREBELERBDERB R

7 e

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i R & # (£ H) R AR QT

160 ¥, Annual Report 2018 =2 — NE £



Notes to the Consolidated Finanial Statements

R B AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+1+—HIF&E

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging
(crediting) the following items:

10. RFE & F

AEREME R GEA) T I & A :

2018 2017
—E-N\E e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT ARBTFT
Salaries, wages and other staff benefits e IBREMET
=gl 44,524 26,120
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RUKAE FFT 814 K 1,975 1,301
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses % # 45 & LA % 17 /& B 1 14
K X 385 2,589
Total staff costs (Note) BIRANERE M) 46,884 30,010
Depreciation of property, W - BEREHETE
plant and equipment 1,051 789
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEN 1,365 513
Auditor's remuneration % A0 B & 1,125 811
Research and development costs recognised R A 2% E A
as an expense (included in cost of sales) (Bt A EKA) 6,881 6,054
Impairment losses recognised on trade ERESGEFRREHNEE
receivables and contract assets T 58 /Y Rk (B B 18 702 -
Impairment losses reversal on trade ERESERRENEE
receivables and contract assets e SR R 1B B B B (86) (1,077)
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense R AR 217 & kA& 2,423 1,258
Interest income M EMK A (33) (21)
Government grants IS 5 B
- value-added tax refunds - RETRMN (1,552) (1,462)
Waiver of other payables e E A FE S 5RIE - (26)
Note: Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs. Wat - EEMEBEFA LM B TR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

11. DIRECTORS’" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments for the year,

N EENBESTHAEHN

REBBEAN ETRRRAFHEOIARE -

disclosed pursuant to applicable Listing Rules and CO, is as REEBAFEZEERERTRABH
follow: B an T -
2018
—B-N\F
Equity-
Retirement settled
benefit share-based
schemes payment
Fees Salaries  contributions expenses Total
RELE
RICER URDRER
e 7 HE % DELE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFZ
Executive directors HOTES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai ERRELE - 97 5 - 102
Mr. Cui Jian ERESE - 431 5 - 436
Mr. Hung Ying EALE - 592 5 24 621
Mr. Lin Xue Xin (Note) WEM KL iT) 97 520 63 P} 703
Subtotal Pt 97 1,640 78 47 1,862

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the

affairs of the Company and the Group.

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Pao Ping Wing

Mr. Thomas Tam

Mr. Lo King Man

Subtotal

The non-executive directors’
were for their services as directors of the Company or its

subsidiaries.

Total

EXARATEENFH I RRERE
EBEARRARAEEEEMRHEORE -

BUFHTES

BREEE 97 - - 2 99
REEFE 97 - - 2 99
EEXEE 97 - - 2 99
INEF 291 - - 6 297

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i R & # (£ H) R AR QT

emoluments shown above

EXFREATESOHFHNRBEFIES
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Notes to the Consolidated Finanial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+1+—HIF&E

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S N EERESITHRABEHME)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
2017
—T-tF
Equity-settled
Retirement  share-based
benefit schemes payment
Fees Salaries  contributions expenses Total
BEER
RIAEF URHAER
we ¥4 SHEIfR HRFEX aat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai ERBEE - 83 - 87
Mr. Cui Jian EZRE - 414 - 418
Mr. Hung Ying e - 350 169 523
Mr. Lin Xue Xin (Note) WEH L LW 2E) 48 248 59 156 511
Subtotal Nt 48 1,095 1l 325 1,539

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for

their services in connection with the management of the

affairs of the Company and the Group.

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. Pao Ping Wing

Mr. Thomas Tam

Mr. Lo King Man

Subtotal

The non-executive directors’

EXATRATEESNTFM IR EERE
BARBARASEEEMRHNRSE

BUFYTES

BRE L L 83 - - 17 100
HEELE 83 - - 17 100
EsXhE 83 - - 17 100
INEE 249 - - 51 300

emoluments shown above

were for their services as directors of the Company or its

subsidiaries.

Total

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

11. DIRECTORS’" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

\

4

1!

[’ |

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Note: Mr. Lin Xue Xin was appointed as executive director of the Company
since 2017, the emoluments of 2017 disclosed above include those
for his services as employee prior to becoming the director of the
Company. Mr. Lin Xue Xin is also the chief executive officer ("CEO")
of the company and his emoluments above includes those for services
rendered by him as CEO.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. Except for one of the
directors, Mr. Hung Yung Lai, has waived remuneration
of RMB786,000 in total at the end of 2017, of which
RMB41,000 is related to waived remuneration for year 2017,
no other directors waived any emoluments during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, certain directors
were granted share options, in respect of their services to
the Group under the share option scheme of the Company.
Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 26
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i R & # (£ H) R AR QT

N. EBRBETHRAEHFMNE)

it MEBHREER _ZT-—LtFHHEZER/H

TEFE - LRBRE_FT-LtF2HFHNeRE
WHRBARFTESAFEREE ZHB - M
SHAEENBARRTHRAR - K Lt %
B e mEEETHRAOEHH -

BHEZZ-—N\EZTE—+tF+_H=1+—
ALEFE AEEVEATHNESIHFEH
BERBEIEMAREB K INAKREH
R 2R SERERERB2HEE - Hf
—REE RBRERE RZTE—tFERE
HRRENE 2 FH e BHE AR786,000
TERRE - E-—LENFLEHNAA
R#®a41,000T c HEZZ—N\FR_T—
+t&+ZA=+—RHLFE BEEWGE
ERRTMEHEMH -

BE_T—tHF+-_A=+—HLFE"
ETEFARSERBAEE - £ARAE
BB TR BAE - BRER M
HBHERARERE MWK E26
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+1+—HIF&E

Notes to the Consolidated Finanial Statements

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 12. A5 RESHFHES
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the FARKEBEhEERFHESERERMA
year included two directors (2017: two directors), details of EF(CT—EHF WEES) BEHMH
whose remuneration are set out in note 11 above. Details of HBERLEXHEN - FRBTIZA(Z
the remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2017 B+ F ZH)WHFARAEEFHITH
three) highest paid employees who are neither a director BENESHFWALTHFBHI AT
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+LF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ABR¥TFT
Salaries and other benefits & Kk EAhE A 1,538 1,110
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RUKAE F AT 814 K 118 120
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses f% # & & DA% {7 /& E 7
BEAEE3 91 609
1,747 1,839

Their emoluments were individually within the Hong Kong
dollar ("HK$") 1,000,000 band.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, certain non-
director and non-chief executive highest paid employees
were granted share options, in respect of their services to
the Group under the share option scheme of the Company.
Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 26
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. R =
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share KRR EANBESREARAREE WS
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the TR T 5 8UE T E -

following data:

Earnings figures are calculated as follows: W SBTERNT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFIT ABRETT

Profit for the year attributable to owners of ZRAQG HA A FIEFE
the Company for the purposes of basic and & B% = 7K & # 58 Uk 25

diluted earnings per share FEAR F R IR = 22,203 15,798
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
‘000 '000
Fhie F g
Number of shares v =]

Weighted average number of ordinary shares FI{EstETRERI 2

for the purpose of basic earnings per share 3% 8 % i FH & 874,774 864,430
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares HEETTRRBIRED
- Share options R 2,014 2,533

Weighted average number of ordinary shares FI{EstE T E W 2

for the purpose of diluted earnings per I3 AR N RE S B

share 876,788 866,963
The computation of diluted earnings per share for the years HE-_Z-N\EZ_T—tHF+HA=1+—
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 does not assume the HIEFE  BRETSKRITRAFHE-Z
exercise of 2010 January Option, 2010 August Option, —ZF-ABEKRE —ZT-ZF)\ABERKR
2011 February Option, 2015 May Option and 2017 April - —_E-—F_ABERE —T—0F
Option (as defined in note 26) because the exercise prices hAERER-_Z— 50 AERKRE (W
of those options were higher than the average market prices Misr2epmit) BEA-ZE—N\R=ZT—+t
for both 2018 and 2017. FEULHBENTRERSRTSE TFHE

18 o

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the ARFESREREN LB R INETF
purpose of basic earnings per share has been adjusted for HEER T —N\FWAMNBITE B #E
the exercise of share options on 4 April 2018. TEHFAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Finanial Statements

R B AR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+1+—HIF&E

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. ¥ BERKRE

Computer
Leasehold and related Motor
Buildings Improvements  equipment vehicles Total
HE ElR
=S MELEE BHERE B Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEETT ANRETT ANRETT ARETT AREFTL
cosT BA
At 1 January 2017 R-_ZE—+%-f-A 6,479 3,573 7,450 1,346 18,848
Additions #n 5,923 102 41 360 6,796
Disposals HeE - (125) (924) (208) (1,257)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+&+-A=1+—H 12,402 3,550 6,937 1,498 24,387
Additions #0 - 3N 466 - 777
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+ZA=1—H 12,402 3,861 7,403 1,498 25,164
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—-A—-A 704 3,223 6,705 691 11,323
Provided for the year RERE 404 91 177 117 789
Eliminated on disposal HE R 8 - (125) (924) 42) (1,091)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+&+-A=1—H 1,108 3,189 5,958 766 11,021
Provided for the year TERA 559 132 234 126 1,051
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+-A=1—H 1,667 3,321 6,192 892 12,072
CARRYING VALUES EHE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+ZA=+—H 10,735 540 1,21 606 13,092
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=1—H 11,294 361 979 732 13,366
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SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i & (£E) R ER A 7

Ve
i

1)
/



>

168 .

®

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual
value, using straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:
Buildings Over 20 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term
of lease or 5 years
20% — 30%
10% — 20%

Computer and related equipment
Motor vehicles

The buildings are situated on leasehold land in the PRC and
held under medium-term lease.

The Group has pledged buildings with a net book value
of approximated RMB10,539,000 (31 December 2017:
RMB11,086,000) to secure borrowings granted to the Group
(see note 24).

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i R & # (£ H) R AR QT

14. WE BERKRE(E)

NERBERYE BEARXRBEEBEZ
EEAERFHARNERERE TIFX
WEHERA WAt R A RSREE:

BF 20 A+
HEMEEE THEFHYSF

(AEE & B 2E)
ER B 20% £30%
g0 10% % 20%

HZEBTFTURPTEAMNEE L
BRAHEERSS -

ANEBEEFEEELDN A K10,539,000
T(CZE—+tF+-_A=1+—H:AR%
11,086,0007) B E TW & - EAK T A
SEEENER(RMHFE24) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+1+—HIF&E

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15. B EE

Development

costs
HEEA
RMB’000
AREFT
COST 5N
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+tF—H—H 15,181
Additions bl 4,532
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=-_A=+—H 19,713
Additions H#0 10,082
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-N\F+=-_A=+—H 29,795
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT e R RE
At 1 January 2017 RZE—-—tEF—H—AR 13,379
Amortisation for the year NG SR 513
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=-A=+—H 13,892
Amortisation for the year NEHIERE 1,365
At 31 December 2018 RZE—-N\F+=-_A=+—H 15,257
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+=ZA=+—H 14,538
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=-_A=+—H 5,821

Development costs are internally generated and have
finite useful lives of 5-10 years, which are amortised on a

straight-line basis.

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

16. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 16. EXEFBEE BE

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated MEEWBRAEXRE2IBEHME - & T
RLEHEEERBBECHERE -TXA
R BHREBNNETHRIBLE AR DT

statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset. The following is the
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting
purposes:

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥TFT AR TFor

Deferred tax assets R IEE E 1,696 1,943
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIEEE (2,889) -
(1,193) 1,943

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets

ULTARAFERBEFECERANE
recognised and movements thereon during current and prior REERBEEMEENAREE

years :

>

Temporary
difference
Development on revenue
costs  Tax losses  recognition Others Total
WEER 2
HEEA RBEE ERER Hity st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT AREFrT AREFT AREFT ARKFT
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF—H—H - - - - -
Credit to profit or loss HAERR - 1,943 - - 1,943
At 31 December 2017 R-ZZ—+F+_R
=+—H - 1,943 - - 1,943
Charge to profit or loss naEz (1,865) (247) (537) (487) (3,136)
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\F+_A
=+t-H (1,865) 1,696 (537) (487) (1,193)

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i R & # (£ H) R AR QT
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =L —\F+=FA =+ —HIFFZE

16. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (Continued)

17.

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately RMB21,490,000 (2017:
RMB34,075,000) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
tax losses of RMB11,307,000 (2017: RMB12,953,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining RMB10,183,000 (2017: RMB21,122,000) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams.

The unused tax losses will expire in the following years:

Notes to the Consolidated Finanial Statements

16.

EREBIREE BE(E)

R|EBRR  AEEBERDARBEELY
BAREE21,490,0000 (ZE—tF: AR
#:34,075,0007T) AT K 85 oK % F o BLEZ
EEBECRRABELCHEEEAARE
11,307,000t (=— T — £ &: A R &
12,953,0007T) ° A A 4 3% 7808 & 2 FI
R - R RE BT A K%10,183,000
T(ZZE—+F: AR®21,122,0007T)
BEEHREEE -

AREFZ ARBABBKEEZDHBAN
T

2018 2017

—ZE-)N\F —E—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥Fr AR T

2018 —E-)N - 12,916
2019 —E—-h 1,355 1,355
2020 —EF-F 5,502 5,502
2021 —EF-— 1,348 1,348
2022 = 11,307 12,954
2023 —_E_-= 1,978 -
Total unused tax losses KB AR BB 21,490 34,075

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets designated at FVTPL:

7. BAREH AR ZERMEE

BERBRARBHABRSSREE:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBFT AREFT
Investments in unlisted fund, at fair value FEMESKEE -
E /NI ] 237 305

The unlisted fund is denominated in United State dollar
("US$") and the investment objective of the fund is to
achieve capital appreciation through investing in securities,
ownership interest and private equity investments offered
relation to energy and

publicly or privately and in

environmental protection business.

FETESEETHE  E2NRERR

REBRENRERRBRREZEBOHA

BANLEES  AERED ML ARE
REBREAKLE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

18.

PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the investment is measured at
fair value, which reflected the fair values of the underlying
assets of the fund, which were provided by the counterparty
financial institution. Upon adoption of IFRS 9 as at
1 January 2018, the investment in unlisted fund is still

measured at FVTPL at the end of the reporting period.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

17. BRAREFAERZERMEE

(&)

RZE—tEF+ZA=+—8 KEZA
NEFE RBESCHBEEZAAE
HEFERBBREE RZZT—-N\F—H
— BRI REERIEIRE - R
FEIMESHBRENMRBEHREAA
BEFfABZHAHRTE -

18. B B 5 & HAtb Bk X

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARBFT

Trade receivables & W E 5 B8R 5k
— goods and services - Em&k RS 67,319 46,352
Less: allowance for credit losses W EE B R EE (1,192) (581)
66,127 45,771
Other receivables and prepayments Efh g W BR 5 R TR RIE 9,755 5,219
Total trade and other receivables JEUE 5 K H b BR AR T 75,882 50,990

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, trade
receivables from contracts with customers amounted to
RMB66,127,000 and RMB43,983,000.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the trade receivables
are retention amounts of RMB1,788,000,
RMB137,000 are due after one year. Upon application

of which

of IFRS15, the retentions receivables were reclassified to
contract assets.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i R & # (£ H) R AR QT

RZZE-N\F+-_A=1+—"HEZZ—N\
F—HA—HB KARFAYONEKRES
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+1+—HIF&E

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for credit losses presented based on the invoice

18. BB Z R HALBRR(E)

AT Th8 & R E SRR (FIRR B &
BINEZBHE D2 Rk D7 -

dates:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AB¥TFT
0 — 120 days 0E120K 43,261 35,177
121 — 180 days 1212180K 271 850
181 — 365 days 1812 365K 4,886 3,044
Over 365 days 365K BA & 17,709 6,700
66,127 45,771

As at 31
trade receivables balance are debtors with aggregate

December 2018, included in the Group’s

carrying amount of RMB22,595,000 which are past due
as the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
RMB17,709,000 has been past due 365 days or more and
is not considered as in default as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered fully recoverable.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group's trade
receivables balance were debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately RMB9,744,000 which were past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered fully coverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i & (£E) R ER A 7

R-Z—N\F+-_A=+—0 KEEH
BREZEREHLREEOREAAR
#£22,595,0007T K FE U BR 3¢ - AR &5 A HR
B o m AP - AK®17,709,000
OB 365 A L HREEEEY
mEANEHRZERBNRE] B S
B TR AELD -

RZZE—+tF+_A=+—8 A£EK
BREZEREHOERREANAR
#£9,744,0007T M) FE W BR 5% - R 5 B &
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. EIWB S K HEM R (&)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not EEHERBREZEREES RN ZERER
impaired: DT
2017
—E—+tF
RMB’000
AR¥Fr
181 — 365 days 181F 365K 3,044
Over 365 days 365K M 6,700
9,744
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RERESD
2017
=
RMB’000
ABE®TFT
1 January —H—H 1,658
Impairment losses reversed EEEREERE (1,077)
31 December +ZRA=+—H” 581
At 31 December 2017, included in the allowance for RZZE—+F+-A=+—H REREHE
doubtful debts are individually impaired trade receivables BREEERREZEWESHEREELD
with an aggregate balance of approximately RMB581,000 A KR #581,0007T 2 B B 1EH A HIE B IK
of which the debtors were in financial difficulties. R 2 o
Other receivables and prepayments mainly include advance Hirpg KRB RENRIBEXZREMA
to staff for daily operation, rental and utility deposits and FREREBEIRR HeRAARMEE
others. ® KEAD o
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other HE-_Z—)\F+-A=1T—HLEFEX
receivables for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set EREZREAMBERRETHFBEHR
out in note 31. B 5E31 ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+1+—HIF&E

19. CONTRACT ASSETS 9. ENEE

31/12/2018 1/1/2018*

—E-N\F —E-N\F
t=A=+-—-AH —A—Aar

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T AR For

Retention receivable EWERE 1,129 1,788
* The amounts in this column are after adjustments from the application * AR ERERY B RS ERIFE 155

of IFRS 15.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group's right
to consideration for work completed and not billed
because the rights are conditioned on the Group’s future
performance. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional.

The Group typically agrees to a retention period ranging
from one to two years for 5% to 10% of the contract value.
This amount is included in contract assets until the end of
the retention period as the Group’s entitlement to this final
payment is conditional during retention period. The Group
typically transfer contract assets into trade receivables at the
end of retention period.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current because
the Group expects to realise them in its normal operating
cycle. The Group typically transfer contract assets into trade
receivables at the end of retention period.

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in note
31.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The Group'’s bank balances and cash comprise bank balances
which carry interest at prevailing market saving rates ranging
from 0.01% to 0.35% (2017: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Certain of the Group’s bank balances and cash of
approximately RMB25,000 and RMB3,528,000 (2017:
RMB24,000 and RMB368,000) were denominated in US$
and HKS$, respectively.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. RITEBRRRE

HE-Z-\E+_A=+—ALLFEH
M AEEZRETEHEESEEFR
BRIRITHIHFRENE0.01EZE0.35E (=
T—+tF:001EER035E):HEZRITE
R o

REB BN AREE250007T LA RE
3,528,000t (=& — 4 : A R¥24,000
TCLASETTETE R A R #368,0007T LA 7T
FPE)E TRITHESR IR S DDAl 3E

TTRETTEE -

BHE-Z-\F+-A=T—HIEFE "
AEBERRITEBRETRENE B
AEFHRITBONAREMEDT - B
B REERAERE -

For the year ended 31 December 2018,
performed impairment assessment on bank balances
and concluded that the probability of defaults of the

counterparty banks are insignificant and accordingly, no

the Group

allowance for credit losses is provided.

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. BNESZREMERN
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARBTFT
Trade payables BB SRR 1,575 4,521
Payroll payables FE A< B T %57 A 4,558 3,146
Other PRC tax payables JE A~ EL 4t B () A5 1B 2,179 2,306
Employee reimbursement payable JE T & B 3R 8 7,274 4,305
Accruals EitEM 178 178
Other payables E b & BR 3K 5,538 2,799
Total Bt 21,302 17,255
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+—HIF&E

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of
trade payables at the end of the reporting period:

Notes to the Consolidated Finanial Statements

21.

BNEZREMERR(E)

ATTRERRENESRAAZRE
2Dz BRE DT

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T A& T

Within 90 days 90K AN 380 2,957
91 — 180 days 91E180K 3 187
181 — 365 days 1812 365K 57 683
Over 365 days 365K LA E 1,135 694
1,575 4,521

Trade and other payables of approximately RMB807,000
(2017: RMB2,097,000) were denominated in HK$.

22. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

The amounts are denominated in HK$, unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

23. AMOUNT DUE TO IMMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The amount is denominated in HK$, unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

22.

23.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

24. BORROWINGS 24. (B &
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR FT
Unsecured loans from a director (Note i) mIMEEREE W ZE) 66,435 53,964
Secured bank borrowings (Note i) BERFIEITEE A FiI) 11,000 11,000
77,435 64,964
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AREFT ARETTT

Carrying amount of the above borrowings are _t it f& & &) 3R [ (& JE F

repayable: B&:
Within one year —F R 28,131 13,492
Within a period of more than one year but — — LA _E{B N8 8 /i
not exceeding two years 5,157 15,456
Within a period of more than two years but R F{ET B @ AE
not exceeding five years 13,137 8,084
Within a period of more than five years AFNE 31,010 27,932
77,435 64,964
Less: Amounts due within one year shown  JE:ZARBEER —F
under current liabilities NEIH Z 8 (28,131) (13,492)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities ZI AERB A E 2 518 49,304 51,472
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+—HIF&E

24. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

@

(i)

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

The exposure of the Group's loans from a director and the contractual (i)
maturity dates are as follows:

24. 1B & (#&)

W ez -

AEBEESERAEFNAREANIHAEMN
T

2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AREFT
Within one year 1R 17,131 2,492
Between one to two years 1824 5,157 15,456
Between two to five years 2E54F 13,137 8,084
More than five years S5 1& 31,010 27,932
66,435 53,964

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s loans from a AEBEZBENERNEGENAT

director are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—tF

Effective interest rate: R A X
Fixed-rate borrowings TREEE

The weighted average effective interest rate on loans from a director
is 3.02% (2017: 3.42%) per annum.

The loans from a director of approximately RMB51,995,000 (2017:
RMB41,774,000) are denominated in HK$, other borrowings are
denominated in the functional currency of the respective group entity.

The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings and the contractual (ii)
maturity dates are as follows:

2.68% - 4.30% 3.25% - 4.5%

EEEEZMETHERNXAEFI.02E(Z
T—+F:32E)-

BEHIEEHARMES,995000L (ZF—+HF:
HANRMEA1,774,00070) LA TTEHE - EMEE
TAERERMER 2N EMTE -

AEBRTEENRRRANBHANT

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+F

Fixed-rate bank borrowings: ERBIRITEE
Within one year 1E R 11,000 11,000

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest
rates) on the Group's borrowings are as follows:

AEBEBTEEHEREAE (BASRAHF
ESPR

2018 2017
—E-N\& —T—tF

Effective interest rate: BRA =
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEBE 5.46% 4.82%

The weighted average effective interest rate on the bank borrowings
is 5.46% (2017: 4.82%) per annum.

The buildings with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB10,539,000 (2017: RMB11,086,000) have been pledged to secure
bank borrowings of the Group.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i & (£E) R ER A 7

BITEEZMETHERAERATFS46E(Z
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UM ETFAEENRITER

e
-

‘179

®

w



>

e B AR M R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. |7
Number of shares Amount
R4 EE NE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-\§ Tt ZEBE-N\F ZT—+t%¥
‘000 ‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TR TR AREFT ARETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEOE L ZE R K
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January and 31 December nR—A—Bk
+-A=+—H 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR:
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—Bk
+-A=+—H 878,160 864,430 8,661 8,551
On 4 April 2018, employees, consultants and directors n

exercised 13,730,000 shares in total at the price of
HKDO.182 per share which were granted in April 2017,
resulting in an increase of amount RMB110,000 in share
capital.

180 , SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 7RI % f (%) KA R 2 =
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“E-\FMHAMNA " EE  BEEEE
£A4H£17(#13,730,0000 F I E(E0.182/5
TR ERGD  BRABRERMNNZ
Tt FMARE  BRBRAKEMAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =L —\F+=FA =+ —HIFFEZE

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted on 27 August 2001 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees, and
has been expired on 27 August 2011. Under the Scheme,
the Board of Directors of the Company may grant options
to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
The Scheme would be valid and effective for a period of
ten years commencing on the adoption date and have come
to its expiration. All other respects of the provisions of the
Scheme shall remain in full force and holders of all options
granted under the Scheme prior to such expiry shall be
entitled to exercise the outstanding options pursuant to the
terms of the Scheme until expiry of the said options. As
a result, a new share option scheme which was approved
on 28 February 2011 (the “New Scheme”), take effect
immediately after the expiry of the Scheme. The principal
terms of the New Scheme are same with the Scheme.
Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company
held on 28 February 2011 (the “SGM”), the New Scheme
mandate limit was refreshed so that the Company was
authorised to grant share options under the New Scheme
for subscription of up to a total of 81,184,000 shares,
representing approximately 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of the SGM.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i & (@) BB ER A =

26. U AEBRBARRS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

182,

(Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(Continued)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 11 May 2016 (the "AGM"), the scheme mandate
limit under the share option scheme of the Company was
refreshed again so that the Company was authorised to
grant additional share options for subscription for a total
of 86,443,000 shares under the refreshed mandate limit,
representing approximately 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of the AGM. The aggregate
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options that may be granted under the refreshed mandate
limit and upon the exercise of the outstanding options
previously granted is not permitted to exceed 30% of the
shares in issue at any point of time.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
granted share options to 53 eligible participants (the
"Grantees”) to subscribe for a total of 86,440,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company pursuant to the New Scheme subject to the
acceptance of the Grantees.

At 31 December 2018, the number of ordinary shares
remained outstanding in respect of which options had
been granted on 19 January 2010 (“2010 January Option”),
16 August 2010 (“2010 August Option”), 28 February
2011 (“2011 February Option”), 24 June 2013 (“2013 June
Option”), 15 May 2015 (“2015 May Option”) and 7 April
2017 ("2017 April Option”) is 185,530,000 (2017:
199,260,000), representing 21% of the total ordinary
shares of the Company (2017: 23%) in issue at the end of
the reporting period. Options granted on 9 October 2007
(“2007 Option”) were expired in 2017.
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26. LRDAERNRRZ (&)
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(Continued)

Options shall be exercised in the following manner:
Options granted to directors and employees on 9
October 2007 (2007 Option”), 19 January 2010 and

16 August 2010

e 5% of the options shall become exercisable upon
6-months of the date of grant

e Additional 10% of the options shall become
exercisable upon the first anniversary of the date of
grant

e Additional 35% of the options shall become

exercisable upon the second anniversary of the date
of grant

e  Additional 50%
exercisable upon the third anniversary of the date of

of the options shall become
grant

Options granted to directors on 28 February 2011

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the

date of grant

e Additional 50%
exercisable after 9 January 2012

of the options shall become

Options granted to employees on 28 February 2011

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the
date of grant

e  Additional 50%
exercisable after 12 January 2012

of the options shall become

26. LR AEBRNRRZ (&)

FARZREEEBRESB(E)

B RIRIAT HOEITE

R-BELFTANR —F—FF—F
TABR=ZFE-—FFNATAARTEE
RESRIERE
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o FIMO%RHBEREARKREBH A
FRATITE

o HII35%HEE A E
FRATITE

NASN

=i SRR i

o HRT50%HBREANRKRHAM=R
FRATTE

R-FE——F_FA-1NARTEEZE

B E

o S50%ZBRERELBMATITE

o FINS0%NHBREAN _T—_F—

ANBRATITE

R-FB-——F-HA-1NARTEEZHE
B E
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 26.
(Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(Continued)

Options granted to directors and employees on 24
June 2013

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the
date of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable after 23 June 2014

Options granted to directors and employees on 15
May 2015

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the
date of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable after 14 May 2016

Options granted to directors, employees and
consultants on 7 April 2017

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the
date of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable after 6 April 2018

Under the Scheme and the New Scheme, the exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company, and
will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option.
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(Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

(Continued)

- -

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

Options granted to directors and employees on 9

October 2007, 19 January 2010 and 16 August 2010

26. LR A EBEA

E= e

TA X

5 (%)

BEEBRESS(E)

BREZABEMN ZHBNT:

R-BELFTANR —F—FF—F
TABR=ZFE-—FFNATAARTEE

RIESHIERE

Fair value at
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price grant date

REHAHZ
BRESSR R BEH TEH TREE ARE
2007 Option 09.10.2007 09.10.2007 to 08.10.2010  09.04.2008 to 08.10.2017 HK$0.368 HK$0.2253
T FERERE 09.10.2007 09.10.2007%£08.10.2010 09.04.2008%08.10.2017 0.3687% T 0.2253% L
2010 January Option 19.01.2010 19.01.2010 to 18.01.2013  19.07.2010 to 18.01.2020 HK$0.200 HK$0.1330
“E-TE-AERE 19.01.2010 19.01.2010%18.01.2013 19.07.2010%18.01.2020 0.200/% 7t 0.1330/ 7t
2010 August Option 16.08.2010 16.08.2010 to 15.08.2013  16.02.2011 to 15.08.2020 HK$0.840 HK$0.5289
—Z-ZE\AREKE 16.08.2010 16.08.2010%15.08.2013 16.02.2011%15.08.2020 0.840/% T 0.52897% 7T

Option granted to directors and employees on 28

R-CE——F A+ \HBEFEERE

February 2011 BZEKRE
Fair value at
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price grant date
REMAHZ
BREER REBH BEH TR RkE ARE
2011 February Option
“T-—F_REk#E
Grant to directors 28.02.2011 N/A 28.02.2011 to 09.01.2021 HK$0.730 HK$0.3308
KT&E=% 28.02.20M i A 28.02.2011%09.01.2021 0.730% T 0.3308 1T
Grant to directors 28.02.20M 28.02.2011 to 09.01.2012 10.01.2012 to 09.01.2021 HK$0.730 HK$0.3417
BYEZ 28.02.2011 28.02.2011%09.01.2012 10.01.2012£09.01.2021 0730 T 03M7E T
Grant to employees 28.02.20M N/A 28.02.2011 to 12.01.2021 HK$0.714 HK$0.3366
RTYEE 28.02.20M TiEA 28.02.2011212.01.2021 0.71478 7T 0.3366/5 7T
Grant to employees 28.02.20M 28.02.2011 to 12.01.2012 13.01.2012 to 12.01.2021 HK$0.714 HK$0.3417
RTYEE 28.02.20M 28.02.2011£12.01.2012 13.01.2012£12.01.2021 0.714% 7T 03417 T

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i & (@) BB ER A =

" 185

s

-
- .

®



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B AR M R

(Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

(Continued)

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

Option granted to directors and employees on 24

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

26. LR A EBEA

b 2%

TA X

5 (#&)

FARZREEEBRESB(E)

R-CE—Z=ZFEXNXA-FHARTEERE

June 2013 BEZBRE
Fair value at
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price grant date
RELBHZ
BRERR REBH BEH TR TRE MRE
2013 June Option
—E-ZHERRERE
Grant to directors 24.06.2013 N/A 24.06.2013 to 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0506
EY&EZ 24.06.2013 T @A 24.06.2013%23.06.2023 01122 T 0.05067% 7T
Grant to directors 24.06.2013 24.06.2013 to0 23.06.2014  24.06.2014 to 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0522
RYES 24.06.2013 24.06.2013%23.06.2014 24.06.2014%23.06.2023 0.1122/8 1L 0.0522/& T
Grant to employees 24.06.2013 N/A 24.06.2013 to 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0506
KTEE 24.06.2013 TiEA 24.06.2013%23.06.2023 0.1122% 7T 0.050678 7T
Grant to employees 24.06.2013 24.06.2013 to 23.06.2014  24.06.2014 to 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0522
KTEE 24.06.2013 24.06.20135%23.06.2014  24.06.2014%23.06.2023 0.1122% T 0.0522% 7T

Option granted to directors and employees on 15 May

R-E-—ZLZFLEATHEARTEERES

2015 ZRERE
Fair value at
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price grant date
RELAHZ
BRERR R A8 BEH TS TfE MRE
2015 May Option
—Z-nERARKRE
Grant to a director 15.05.2015 N/A 15.05.2015 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2648
KTE% 15.05.2015 @R 15.05.2015%14.05.2025 0438 0.26487% 1T
Grant to a director 15.05.2015 15.05.2015 to 14.05.2016  15.05.2016 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2694
KTE% 15.05.2015 15.05.2015%14.05.2016 15.05.2016%14.05.2025 04387 0.26947% 7T
Grant to employees 15.05.2015 N/A 15.05.2015 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2243
KT¥EE 15.05.2015 TER 15.05.2015%14.05.2025 043 T 0224357t
Grant to employees 15.05.2015 15.05.2015 to 14.05.2016  15.05.2016 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2372
BETEE 15.05.2015 15.05.2015%14.05.2016 15.05.2016%14.05.2025 0438 0232t

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i A& # (£ H) R AR 2T

Annual Report 2018 =2 — NE £k



Notes to the Cosolidated Finnial Sttemets
b Y

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+—HIF&E

(Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

(Continued)

-

. .

26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

Option granted to directors, employees and

26. LR AEBRNRRZ (&)

FARZREEEBRESB(E)

R-E—tFRNFtARTEE  EER

consultants on 7 April 2017 EBERZERE
Fair value at
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price grant date
RELAHZ
BREER REBH BEH TR THE ARE
2017 April Option
2L ENABERE
Grant to a director 07.04.2017 N/A 07.04.2017 to 06.04.2027 HK$0.1820 HK$0.0865
BY&ES 07.04.2017 TER 07.04.2017%06.04.2027 0.1820% 7t 0.08657% 7T
Grant to a director 07.04.2017 07.04.2017 to 06.04.2018  07.04.2018 to 06.04.2027 HK$0.1820 HK$0.0949
ETE=% 07.04.2017 07.04.2017£06.04.2018 07.04.2018%06.04.2027 0.1820/ 7t 0.09493% 7t
Grant to employees and 07.04.2017 N/A 07.04.2017 to 06.04.2027 HK$0.1820 HK$0.0846
consultants
KT EERERM 07.04.2017 TiEA 07.04.2017£06.04.2027 0.18207 L 0.0846}% 7T
Grant to employees and 07.04.2017 07.04.2017 to 06.04.2018  07.04.2018 to 06.04.2027 HK$0.1820 HK$0.0920
consultants
KT EE REM 07.04.2017 07.04.2017£06.04.2018 07.04.2018%06.04.2027 0.1820/ 7t 0.09207 7T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

26.

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

(Continued)

The following table discloses the movement of the share

options during 2018:

DROGBEBRNRR S (E)

FARZREEEBRESB(E)

TREBER-T—\FZEBREE

Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed Expired Outstanding at
Option type BRERR 1.1.2018  during year  during year  during year  during year 31.12.2018
RZZ-NF RZZE-NEF
—A—H +: A=1+-H
HATE RENRE RENTE RENER RENIH W AT
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 000
F F F F F F
Granted to directors RTE=

2010 January Option —T-TE-RAERE 1,800 - - - - 1,800
2011 February Option T —F-HERE 65,000 - - - - 65,000
2013 June Option —ZERABRE 40 - - - - 40
2015 May Option —RERAER 1,900 - - - - 1,900
2017 April Option “E-LEMABRE 3,430 - (1,325) - - 2,105
72,170 - (1,325) - - 70,845
Exercisable at the end of 2018 ARZE—\FRTE 70,845
Weighted average exercise price METFHTEE 0.6825 - 0.1820 - - 0.6919
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed Expired Outstanding at
Option type ERERR 1.1.2018  during year  during year  during year  during year 31.12.2018
RZE-N\E RZZ-N\F
—A—H ‘\‘: A E‘I‘ —A
HMARTTHE REARE REATE REAXM RERIH W ARATE
000 000 ‘000 000 000 000
F F F F F F

Granted to employees and consultants ETERERER

2010 January Option - Employees “Z-ZF-R
ERE-EE 5,880 - - - - 5,880

2010 August Option — Employees “Z-TFN\A
ERE-EE 2,360 - - - - 2,360

2011 February Option - Employees “Z-—-%ZH
BhE-ER 12,290 - - - - 12,290

2013 June Option - Employees —T-=F7A
BRiE-ES 6,200 - - - - 6,200

2015 May Option - Employees “T-H%HA
ERE-ES 17,850 - - - - 17,850

2017 April Option - Employees “T-t5mA
ERE-EE 36,700 - (2,640) - - 34,060

2017 April Option - Consultants “T-t5mWA
BhE-EH 45,810 - (9,765) - - 36,045
127,090 - (12,405) - - 114,685
Exercisable at the end of 2018 ARZE—\FRTE 114,685
Weighted average exercise price METFHTEE 0.2779 - 0.1820 - - 0.2883

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i A& # (£ H) R AR 2T
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 26. LR BEBRSRRZ (&)
(Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company KAFZRELZEBRESTE (&)
(Continued)
The following table discloses the movement of the share TREBER-Z—LEHERESZ

options during 2017:

Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed Expired Outstanding at
Option type BRERR 112017 during year  during year  during year  during year 31.12.2017
RZZ—+F RZFE—+F
—A—H +ZA=+-AH
HATE RENRE RENTE RENER RENIH W AR AT
000 ‘000 ‘000 000 ‘000 000
F F F F F F
Granted to directors RTE=
2010 January Option “T-TFE-RAERE 1,800 - - - - 1,800
2011 February Option “ET-—-FZRERE 65,000 - - - - 65,000
2013 June Option -5 RAEKRE 40 - - - - 40
2015 May Option —ZT-RERABRE 1,900 - - - - 1,900
2017 April Option “Z-tFMABRE - 3,430 - - - 3,430
68,740 3,430 - - - 72,170
Exercisable at the end of 2017 RS-t FETE 70,455
Weighted average exercise price METFHTEE 0.7075 0.1820 - - - 0.6953
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed Expired Outstanding at
Option type BREER 112017 during year  during year  during year  during year 31.12.2017
RZE—tF RZZ—+F
-A-A8 +=A=+-A
WA  RERNEE  RERTE  REAXE  RERNIES BRI
000 000 ‘000 000 000 000
F F F F F F
Granted to employees and consultants % T{E & X B
2007 Option-Employees “ZE+FERE-EE 15,910 - - - (15,910) -
2010 January Option - Employees —T-ZE-AERE-EE 5,880 - - - - 5,880
2010 August Option — Employees “T-TE\AERE-ES 2,360 - - - - 2,360
2011 February Option — Employees “E--F-AERE-EE 12,290 - - - - 12,290
2013 June Option - Employees “Z-=FNRERE-EE 7,200 - - (1,000) - 6,200
2015 May Option — Employees “E-RERARERE - EE 17,850 - - - - 17,850
2017 April Option - Employees “E-+ENABRE-EE - 37,200 - (500) - 36,700
2017 April Option - Consultants “E-tEMARRE - B - 45,810 - - - 45,810
61,490 83,010 - (1,500) (15,910) 127,090
Exercisable at the end of 2017 JRZF—LEEIHFE 85,835
Weighted average exercise price METHTEE 0.4580 0.1820 - 01355 0.2000 0.2969 -
s a8
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 26. U AEBARRSF (E)

(Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company AAFZRELZEBRESTE (&)
(Continued)

RERTENEREMS  RITEAH
B N4 P19 R /018208 T (ZF —+
FE)-

In respect of the share options exercised during the year,
the weighted average share price at the dates of exercise

was HK$0.1820 (2017: Nil).

BREDSA-—EABRETERAEE -
B z@ABHOT:

Options were priced using binomial option pricing model.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

2017 April Option
ZE -t FMABRE
Granted to

Granted to employees and

directors consultants

RYEE KTEELER

Share price 1% 18 HK$0.1820/% 7T HK$0.18203% 7T
Exercise price IEE HK$0.1820/% 7T HK$0.18205% 7T
Expected volatility 8 B R IR 66.9840% 66.9840%
Expected dividend yield HEHREX 0.000% 0.000%
Sub-optimal factor RERET 2.8 2.2
Risk-free interest rate B B A 1.4741% 1.4741%

AEDERS VNI AR E SRSk 3
MA L BRARRBERNRENTESR
EEBENFHFRREEEFHE -

The volatilities adopted were based on average annualised
standard deviations of the continuously compounded
rates of return of the share prices of the Company and
comparable companies with similar business nature of the
Company as of the valuation date.

BE-_ZE—N\F+_A=+—BHLEFE -
AEBESFMES  EERERXTE
RESTERABRMAERTROAAR
#53,0007C (ZF — £ 4 - A K#376,000
7o) AR#332,0000 (ZE—+F AR
#2,213,0007T) & A R #6435,0007T (=&
—+F: AR%2,919,0007T) °

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
recognised the share-based payment of approximately
RMB53,000 (2017: RMB376,000), RMB332,000 (2017:
RMB2,213,000) and RMB435,000 (2017: RMB2,919,000)
for share options granted to directors, employees and
consultants respectively.
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27.

28.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
(the "MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group contributed 5% of relevant payroll costs to the
MPF scheme, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the respective local governments in the PRC. The Group
is required to contribute 27%-28% of payroll costs to
the schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to these schemes is to make the
specified contributions.

Notes to the Consolidated Finanial Statements

27.

BARE R ETE

AEERFERBEEANGERREEEE
BEIMEATRETE - XA 2EEEAR
SEZEENRARBA AHEFANES
IR - AEBRRGIE AR EIAEZ
HRSERTEKA (LR R %30,000)
Z5%  MmiER 2HRLEETFAER -

AEEEFBEZEEE SBFEZ)
BT 2E 2z BREERKENGE Z K
B AEEASFHFMRAZ27%E28%A
R EIHERIAEREREZER - &A%
Byt cEEERERBEZHR -

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 28. lHEAIE
The Group as lessee AEEEREHEA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—LtF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETFT
Minimum lease payments paid under FREEHENZEE S
operating leases during the year 5% 2,947 2,542

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under

RBERR AREREAEENEHEN
HBOTAHEzREHEAZARRE

non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented Merz BEREH WO T:
premises which fall due as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTFT
Within one year —FR 1,581 1,675
In the second to fifth year inclusive FFEFRF 88 129
1,669 1,804

Leases are negotiated and fixed for terms of half to two
years (2017: half to two years).

HELHNYEERBFLFEMFE(ZF
—tEFFFEMF) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

29. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries at the end of the

reporting period are set out below.

Country of
incorporation/
establishment/

Particulars of issued
and fully paid share
capital/registered

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. RATRIM B AR 215

AEBMBRARNBRSE

mE o

HIRZFBEHT

Proportion of voting Proportion of ownership
interest for 2018 and

power held by the

Name of company operations capital Company 2017 Principal activities
MR/ RY, BRTRBERE/ NGRS d RZB-NERZE-t#
AAER EEER HEMERZFE FERELA BEAAL TEER
2018 2017 Direct Indirect
“E-\F ZT—tF HE B
Sing Lee Electronics British Virgin 715 shares of 100% 100% 100% - Investment holding
(B.V.L) Co., Ltd. Islands US$1each
Sing Lee Electronics EBREZHEE  TSREREEIER REZRK
(B.V.I) Co., Ltd. Z R
Singlee Software' PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - 100% Development and sales
US$4,325,500 of software products,
sales of related
hardware products
and provision of
technical services
BN H 4,325,500% T MENHERHER -
AfMER HERBRGER
DA T 9% 1t B il AR 7%
Singlee Technology? PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - 100% Development and sales
US$6,714,000 of software products,
sales of related
hardware products
and provision of
technical services
CRIEREST HE 6,714,000% 7t HEMEEREER -
F AR HERBREGER -
DA T 32 £k B 110 AR 7%
Xin YinTong? PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - 100% Development and sales
RMB50,000,000 of software products,
sales of related
hardware products
and provision of
technical services
B H A K #50,000,0007T HAMEERMER
&R HERBEFER
DA T 38 41k 5110 AR 7%

L T
192 .
X
- LY
[ ] o \

4
. I
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29.

30.

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

! Singlee Software is wholly foreign owned enterprise.
2 Singlee Technology and Xin YinTong are sino-foreign equity joint
ventures established in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings,
amounts due to directors and bank balances and cash, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
share capital, share premium, accumulated losses and other
reserves.

The directors of the Group review the capital structure on
a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well
as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

Notes to the Consolidated Finanial Statements

29.

30.
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EXREREE

AEEEREEAKMBERASEZE
BANFELZ YEBELABERK
AEBRREREBEATREANLHR -
EFFERE AKBZERRBEST

;5

= °

AEBzEARBRERERER  BHE
ERBERBTEBLRASRNARBAEER
ANBIEBRA(EPBRERA - BROEE
RABEEEMERE)

EEELFE-RARIERARE - ERR
28D BEFEEREARARLES
BRIEAREzZRAR AKBERREE
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BRUOFESABELRBEESKFEHEE
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 3. €m T A

31a. 2R T HEER

31a. Categories of financial instruments

194

31b.

2018 2017
—g-NE  -Tt%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB¥TFT ARETFT
Financial assets THEE
Loans and receivables (including bank &3k & fE U k1B (B 15
balances and cash) RITHEBNIRE) - 80,631
Financial assets at amortised costs HEBENTINEZ S
BEE 121,614 -
Financial assets at fair value through AR EFFAEBZ 2
profit or loss TREE 237 305
121,851 80,936
Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised cost B R AR 99,107 82,377

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, contract assets, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, bank balances
and cash, amounts due to directors, amount due
to immediate holding company, trade and other
payables and borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (interest rate risk, currency risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i A& # (£ H) R AR 2T

3. eREAREEENREE

AEBzeRMTABREERES R
HthER  6HNEE - BAanER
ABBZEREE  RITHEHLER
T BNEFERE BENEERER
RAEFIE - BN EH M EMERTIA R
BE ZEeRIAZFBERZW
AFHE - - EZEERTAMABELZ
REeEmsRk(FxER 5%
R Rk EMEBRRR)  EERER N
RBETER BAENAREZS
Rz BRENTX BEEEER
K B R 52 5% [ B DARE R AT DA R %
BRZHABBAEZEG °
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

31b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk

(i)

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

Currency risk

The Group has bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, amounts due to directors,
amount due to
and borrowings denominated in US$ and HKS$,
currencies other than the functional currency

immediate holding company

of the respective group entities, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. In addition,
the group has intra-group balances with several
subsidiaries denominated in foreign currency
which also expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group currently does not have a
foreign exchange hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should the

need arises.

The carrying amount of the foreign currency

Notes to the Consolidated Finanial Statements

3. €T A(&E)

3Mb.¢RRAREEENRBE(E)

%5 B B
() E¥mE

RITHEBERS ENEZR
HRR - BNESHIE - BN
EERERARREREEINE
TRABET(ZEERLIFARE
BERZIIEEE)FE  EX
SEZEAEINER R o b A
SERZEANBARZHEHETAE
LA ONES 5T 1B A9 5= B A9 BB 1 2R A
i SARBERKEATINE
Rk o A5 B B AT E NS
HHBE- AW EEESE
FONER B - BEEEEH
BEARMINERR

RBEMRAIINEFENEE

denominated monetary assets and monetary EEREBEENERETENT
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE a8E BE =N
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
uss$ ET 25 - 24 -
HK$ A TT 3,528 53,350 368 44,207
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

31b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. @ T A(£E)

3b.eRMEMEZEENREK(E)

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued) T E R (E)

() Currency risk (Continued) () EEEEE)
Sensitivity analysis BRRE ST

The following table details the sensitivity to a
5% (2017: 5%) increase and decrease in the RMB
against US$ and HK$. The 5% (2017: 5%) is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign

TRANARBE T KBTI
BERMES% (ZF—+F:5%)
MBREDN - ML EEAR
P& 1 S EE L B 79 B8P O e B

currency risk internally to key management FA5% (ZF —+HF : 5%) B
personnel and represents management’s EhbE  RKREEREHIIMNEREE

assessment of the reasonably possible change
in the foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items, and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% (2017: 5%)
change in foreign currency rates. A positive
(negative) number indicates an increase (decrease)
in the post-tax profit where RMB strengthens
against US$ and HKS$. For a 5% (2017: 5%)
weakening of RMB against US$ and HK$, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit and the balances below would be negative.

MEIBAIRE B B M AT - SR
EAMEBRNAIINEFENE
SNEREIRR - WRNFRIES% (=
T— -+ F 1 5%) Ky HMNE B R &

ARG - FE(BE)BEKREA
REBSEZTRBTEET KL
&g FIG N O L) o AR
HWEITTRBILEBE% (ZF—
+F:5%) EHENEELES
BREROEE mTIiEHe

US$ Impact HK$ Impact
EnEE BLEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-NF —Z=—+tF —E-NE —ZFT—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT AR¥FT ARKEFT
Profit or loss 2,117 1,863

B 4] M

19 .

This is mainly attributable to the net exposure
to outstanding foreign currency bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, amounts due
to directors, amount due to immediate holding
company and borrowings in US$ or HK$ at end
of the reporting period.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i A& # (£ H) R AR 2T

b HEBERERENREKRT
G TT B TT R SN SR 1T 4
RES  ENEHREMER -
EREERE EAEERR
DAKARE ST EY 2 AR
B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+—HIF&E

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

31b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate secured loans from
bank and unsecured loans from a director (see
note 24 for details). The Group is also exposed to
cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable
rate bank balances (see note 20 for details). The
management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The directors consider that the cash flow interest
rate risk is insignificant, accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis were presented for both years.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in unlisted funds. The sensitivity
analyses have been determined on the exposure
to the market price risks at the end of reporting
period. If the prices of the investments in unlisted
funds had been 5% higher or lower, the post-
tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2018 would have increased or decreased by
approximately RMB10,000 (2017: RMB13,000)
respectively as a result of the changes in fair value
on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

3. €T A(&E)

3Mb.¢RRAREEENRBE(E)

5 m g (&)
(i) FIFE R EE

AEEBAXERARMRITE
EnERREEERE(ARHE
A2 E24) ARz AREN
KR - AKETAZERE
SR TT A (FF 1B R E20) 19
BenEMNERER - - EEEHK
R B E R E AR X

LA
a

o o
ZN

EEZARRERENER I
TEXR MMEEHEZIIH
RE DT -

(i) A 81 5
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AEBREIELTESIRE A
ERAERRAR AEEDH®
HEHANOTHBERERET
BRERESNT - MSHEIELTE
CIRENERLFKTES% -
Bz N\F+=ZA=1+—8H
HFENRERFBEEZRA
REFABEZEMEEAR
BEHMBMNKBRIODARE
10,000 (ZE—tEF AR
13,0007T) °

o
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

31b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of respective financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with
its financial assets. There is no significant changes
in the collateral policies of the entity during both
reporting periods.

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
an internal credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed at the end of the reporting period. The
Group also adopts legal and appropriate measures to
collect overdue debts and reduce credit losses through,
amongst others, phone calls, facsimile, letters, visits,
interviews, as well as legal actions as the final resort.
The Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model upon application of IFRS 9 (2017: incurred
loss model) on trade balances individually or based
on provision matrix. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i A& # (£ H) R AR 2T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

3. @ T A(£E)

3b.eRMEMEZEENREK(E)

1= B [ B R 618 AT 14
R-E-N\RZF—tF+-A=+

*E'$$llx%ﬂ$$ Y RIS
FEKAEEMBEL mEEZ
BEAEERBREERGETBKMR
KT EBECEReREECLERE
B AEEWEFEEMERRL
EmzaEaEmAAHEemEE
HEAEE R B IRERE - AW ER
HHAN - ZEBNE AR I &
EEREL -

EFENELNEREZRARE
HWEE

ARBREFERR AEBEEEDR

VEEEKETEEERBEREER
%o BINEMFRELR - AEEFER
NEBEETIEZREETCRERL,NE
BER#ETHE VEREFAEREE
PREE - MEARE PR KT
eBIEHN AEENTRAEER
EEREREERES - A REE
REE)ERE - BE - EK - B
E# - ERERTIIEAREE R
WO EEEE FREEERMB®RE
HERFEIR®%E AEBERBHEHEE
BAERN(ZZE—tF BELEER
BR)EBKERBEEREHESE
BRETTRE TG - st s - AQ7A
EERAAEBENEERR KRR
1_0
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

31b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

3. €T A(&E)

3Sb.eREMEZEENREK(E)

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Other receivables and bank balances and cash

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of IFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss
model) on other receivables and bank balances and
cash based on 12m ECL.

The credit risk on other receivables is limited because
the counterparties have no historical default record
and the directors expect that the general economic
conditions will not significantly changed for the 12
months after the reporting date.

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because
the counterparties are banks/financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

Based on the Group’s internal credit rating, no material
impairment loss allowance is recognised for other
receivables and bank balances and cash.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables consist
of a large number of customers, spread across diverse
industries.

The Group has concentration of credit risk of 44%
(2017: 49%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the Group’s top five largest customers in relation
to the provision of technical support services business
segment.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i & (@) BB ER A =

1= B [ B2 K 6L AT 14 ()

Bt JEW AR R IRIT AR R &

AN B R A B BR B 7 RS A9
518 B E b FE UL AR B R IR TT A 82 %
ReRBEEMREEBRBIERN(ZS
+&: BEEABEEN)RI2EARE
HEEBXETRENS -

HRRSGEFIEELEZHLER
ExEHEREAMRREARR
BRERARAE I GELEERE(L &
EREMERETINEERRESR
BR e

HRXZHFHLABBEREENR
BEFEASEEFRNRITRE
BHE REBRRITESRNEER
SBAR -

REASENAINEEFH LE
REMBUBRERALRITERLRES
EREXREEEERS -

BRBEE(FRRZHESEEFR
MBTEESETRRSI  AEEY
BEXMHEMEXEESTRAR - &

WESERRERZEE  HMHRT
BIT% -

AEFEEAZEEE—SEEEDR
% RER44% (ZF—+F 1 49%)

ZERBEZERREEARAEEZA.

REFPRE  HERKBESERTIY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. €M T A (&)
31b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 3b. 2R EREEENRBEE)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= & 7 B R B (&)
Other receivables and bank balances and cash E M JEW AR KRR ITAE R R %
(Continued) (#&)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of TRE@EIEAEESREENE
the Group's financial assets, which are subject to ECL ERREWMO ZEeREERET
assessment: FEHEEB KRG
Gross
External Internal 12-month or carrying
2018 Notes credit rating  credit rating lifetime ECL amount
“E-N\F fE MBEEFIR ABEETIR NREAR2HAEH EEEAR
RMB‘000
AREFr
Financial assets at
amortised cost
BERBERAIRzEeRERE
Bank balances 20 BB+ to AAA+  N/A 12-month ECL 45,648*
RITH R BB+ZAAA+ A RNEAEHREERE
Other receivables 18 N/A (Note 1) 12-month ECL 8,891
H i U iR 3 TER (Hit1) REREHEEEX
Trade receivables 18 N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL 67,319
(provision matrix)
[EU & 5 R TER (Hit2) PHBRHBEEEX
(BEER)
Other items
HitgH
Contract assets 19 N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL (provision 1,134
matrix)
BHNEE TER (Hit2) PHBRHBEEEX
(BEER)
* The gross carrying amounts disclosed above include the relevant * FXFBEENREEAESEZINAE
interest receivables which presented in other receivables. ity Wk 3K TE A HE RE R U R B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+—HIF&E

Notes to the Consolidated Finanial Statements

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. €M T A (E)
31b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 3bh. 2R EREEENRBEX(E)
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Other receivables and bank balances and cash
(Continued)

Notes:
1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group

uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

=& B R a1 (4F)

R EREHRRTEGRES
(&)

Mt -

1L RABEERRERME  AREER

BAMENTFEEERRESCSEVIRE
R KRG 0

Not past due/

No fixed
Past due repayment terms Total
KRB YEEE
B BRE ot
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTT AR#FTT AR¥FTT
Other receivables H th & U BR K - 8,891 8,891
2. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has 2. BEWREZIERLREHNEE AEEHD
applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss JE PR B BR B S SR SR O P VRl {b
allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant FEREHEMEEBIESERBERE -
outstanding balances or credit-impaired, the Group determines BRTHMABERREREHRKCEERE
the expected credit losses on these items by using a provision U BRI - A B AR EHERR
matrix, grouped by past due status. TRBHBEADHEHEEZSEANTER
FEEEBE -
Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i & (£E) R ER A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE
31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. @ T A(&E)

3b.eRMEMEZEENREK(E)

31b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Provision matrix — debtors’ aging

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group uses debtors’ aging by different industries to
assess the impairment for its customers because these
customers consist of a large number of customers with
common risk characteristics that are representative
of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms.

The estimated average loss rates are estimated based
on historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information by different industries that is
available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
provided approximately RMB1,192,000 impairment
allowance for trade receivables, and RMBS5,000,
impairment allowance for contract assets, based on the
provision matrix. Impairment allowance of RMB827,000
were made on credit impaired debtors.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i A& # (£ H) R AR 2T

1= B 3 B K 6l 1B &7 12 (48)

G E — JE AR A BRI

ERAEBEEERBREEN—FD
A& E LA RTT 5 6 e WK SR IR
AEEEPHNRERI  RE/Z
EEFPEEABARARBHNR
ZEF  MARERSHRBEFR
BANGRINABE B HKIENGE
5 o

fmEFFH B R X REMEKRERXE
HERREBEBEMBEORMGE
I Bt RITERAEEEH (FTES
REBZNARTHENBR TG
MERDIEHRE - ZNHEREERE
TR BREBSSTEKE
RHEEERCEH -

RBE-Z—\F+ZA=+—AH1Lt
FE  AEERBEREEEBTIZER
B ZRFBERENARE,192,000
TTRA N EEREREARKES000
T ° ShiE B R B E W AR AR R E
BB A R827,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Finanial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =L —\F+=FA =+ —HIFFEZE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

31b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Provision matrix — debtors’ aging (Continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime

ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables and
contract assets under the simplified approach.

3. @ T A (&)

3Sb.eREMEZEENREK(E)

1= B [ B R 618 AT 14 ()
REAEE - B AR AR B ()
TRINRRBEE(CEMERE 5K

HRANEECEANZBEBE
HHRED -

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit - (credit -
impaired) impaired) Total
2HRHCERE 2HRENEERE
(BEEHE) (BEEWHE) @it
RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000
AEETT AEETT AEETT
As at 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 and ~ W=ZE-tE+-B=+-A#
as at 1 January 2018 upon adjustment for ~ BEBEHERNEHERR
application of IFRS 9 ZE-N\E-A-HEHE
FREI IR o 5 4 5 2 B S8 9%
HER - 581 581
Changes due to financial instruments recognised R —A—REALBITAHNE
as at 1 January: EEE:
- Impairment losses recognised -ERAAESR 370 332 702
- Impairment losses reversed -BRERERE - (86) (86)
As at 31 December 2018 R-2-N\F+t-A=1-A 370 827 1,197

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or when the trade receivables are over three years
past due, whichever occurs earlier. None of the trade
receivables that have been written off is subject to
enforcement activities.

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF
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b B I E PR W @ 5K A gg ()40
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. @ T A(£E)

3b.eRMEMEZEENREK(E)

31b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

204 .

(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalent as well as undrawn banking facilities
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of borrowings.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from weighted average
interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i A& # (£ H) R AR 2T

REBEZEE

EEERBECAR I @ ANEE
ERNMEREEERR/EAREH
EBRHEESNBERSRED T
ZNRENREFEYMA R KRIER
RITHMEKRF - EHEEBEEEEDN
ERBMR

TRANAKESHMEBENHTEH
A ZXRDERAEBEAETE
MTHRFEHNERABENRTR
BeREaEmmR -ZXEBIMNER
AERERE - WHERERES
KRG 3R £ 88 A DA SR & B K &9 OO #E SR
B EEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+—HIF&E

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

31b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

31.

TR THE)

3Mb.¢RRAREEENRBE(E)

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBELERE)
Liquidity risk table BB 2 A&
Weighted On demand Total
average  or less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year Over 1 year cash flows amount
RERY AER
mEFEHE —FREE —ENE REREAE BEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AR¥ TR AR¥ TR AR¥ TR
2018 —E-N\§
Trade and other payables  JENZ 5 E Bk 3 - 21,124 - 21,124 21,124
Amounts due to directors  JE{TEFHIE - 536 - 536 536
Amount due to immediate  JE{E# KA
holding company WE - 12 - 12 12
Unsecured loans from a BERESEE
director 3.02% 17,638 63,652 81,290 66,435
Bank borrowings BITEE 5.46% 11,601 - 11,601 11,000
50,911 63,652 114,563 99,107
2017 “TtF
Trade and other payables  JENZ 5 I E i Bk 3% - 17,077 - 17,077 17,077
Amounts due to directors  JE{fZFFE - 325 - 325 325
Amount due to immediate  JE{SE#EE KA
holding company WIB - 11 - 11 11
Unsecured loans from a BERESEE
director 3.42% 2,799 67,317 70,116 53,964
Bank borrowings RITEE 4.82% 11,530 - 11,530 11,000
31,742 67,317 99,059 82,377
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

31b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and

financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used) as well as
the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorised (levels 1
to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.

3. @ T A(£E)

3b.eRMEMEZEENREK(E)

WAL AR ()

() F*EMEHAERSBAM
AR TR H 1 HEE A
% 1EH B

rEBIFNEHEERSRA
BENRREREHRODAAE
e o TRERBEZSSRE
EAnRBENEEARN(LERAH
AR ERE AR A R
ARBEFEGABEA] FTEER
NEEMIBEAALEFENA
REEREI1ZIB)MER -

Fair value as at

RUTEHANAAE

Valuation Relationship of
31 December 31 December Fair value technique and key unobservable
2018 2017 hierarchy inputs inputs to fair value
“E-N\F AIT—+FT REFER EEBENB AR
+=A=+-B ZA=+-H AREER BREAAE HEARENBE
RMB’000 RMB000
AREFT ARETFT
Financial assets at fair value ZAREFAEZZE 237 305 Level 3 Discounted cash Increase in discount
through profit or loss BEE (Note 17) (Note 17) flow method was rate would result
used to capture in decrease in fair
the present value value.
of the expected
future economic
benefits that will
flow out of the
Group based on
an appropriate
discount rate.
(HiE17) (Hi##17) E-E NRRAERBEER MEXEMEERAAL
EENREX ERD -
BAEREE R
HASENRES
ARG B E
BE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+—HIF&E

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 3. &M T E(E)
31b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 3bh. 2R EREEENRBEX(E)

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REBELERE)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and () FEBHHEERTHEEZ
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value NRETIIRIEALE [ B EZE R
on a recurring basis (Continued) TEFE(E)

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements: EFE-EBAREFEZHE
Financial Financial
Assets at Assets at
Fair value Fair value
through through
profit or loss profit or loss
2018 2017
BRARERA BASERA
BERNEREE ExNemiEE
—E-N\F e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AR Fr
Opening balance HA ¥ #R 5E 305 707
Fair value loss in profit or loss BT AnEEIE (82) (362)
Exchange difference & H =& 14 (40)
Closing balance H R 4% 84 237 305
There were no transfers in and out from level 3 HMEEENFE=EBHEEAR
in both years. EH o
(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and (i) FEEHLHEERTHEEZ

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value
disclosures are required)

The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 =ZF—\F+=HA =+ —HIFFZE

32. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities

are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows

will be classified in the group’s consolidated statement of

cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

R.WEEHEENEGENY IR

TRAMAEERABETHNABE
B ERASKFRCEY  REDD
EENBERREREME  HARKHA
EREREASEGERSRERTD

EABREEDNRLRE -

Amount
due to
Unsecured Amounts  immediate
Bank loans from a due to holding
borrowings director directors company Total
(Note 24) (Note 24) (Note 22) (Note 23)
EAEE
3 BN E2RAR
BITEE ESEE EBNE B &3t
(M &24) (Bt &£ 24) (M &E22) (H&E23)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFrT AREFr AREFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2017 RZT—t 5
—H—H 5,992 50,090 1,037 12 57,131
Financing cash flows BRERSRE 5,008 7,084 66 - 12,158
Foreign exchange translation HNE 5 1 - (3,210 8 0 (3,203)
Waiver of amount due to a HeRENTESHE
director - - (786) - (786)
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NF
—H—H 11,000 53,964 325 11 65,300
Financing cash flows MERSRE - 7,203 208 - 7,411
Foreign exchange translation INE 1 - 4,002 3 1 4,006
Interest expense FIESH - 1,266 - - 1,266
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZH
=t+—A 11,000 66,435 536 12 77,983
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B 2 —FE—/\F+ - H=+—HIF&E

33.

34.

Annual Report 2018 — 2 — \FEF

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

On 30 September 2017, Mr. Hung Yung Lai, being the
Chairman, executive director and controlling shareholder
of the Company, waived the balance due to him of
approximately RMB786,000 (2018: Nil). The amount has
been capitalised as shareholder’s contribution.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from details of the balances with related parties
disclosed in notes 8, 22, 23 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into the following
related party transactions during the year:

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year were as follows:
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33.

34.

TEFRERS

R-ZE—tFNAA=TH"

RREm@ L
ARBER AITEFTHREBRBR  #%
NS 15 2 iR M0 B AR5 786,0007T (= F
—\F ) ZHMREECAFRBRERMK
FTUAERE -

BERRS

BRI A BERERMEFRHS 22 23K
MBI A INE  ARERFRE
TATHEERIRS:
TEREEBAEME

AEEEFRIEEREIREZMS
mT

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT AR¥For

Short-term employee benefits = HE B 1' A 4,313 3,015

Retirement benefit schemes RAKAR AT B 3K

contributions 279 273
Equity-settled share-based payment i e 45 B DA B 10 A BTN

expenses BT 623 1,498

5,215 4,786
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3. BERR B (&)

35.

Rental expenses HemxX

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARETFT

Rental expenses paid to Sing Lee SNHANEEEHOGR

Pharmaceutical Import & Export Co., RAARIMPHAZEHENEE
Limited for lease of office premises 531 524

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had commitments of
approximately RMB266,000 (2017: RMB262,000) for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases for the next year in respect of office premises leasing
with a related company, Sing Lee Pharmaceutical Import &
Export Co., Limited, which the director, Mr. Hung Yung Lai,
has 50% equity interest with joint control.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 13 March 2019, the Company proposes to raise up to (i)
approximately HK$26.3 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB22.5 million) before expenses by way of a rights issue
of 439,080,000 shares (“Rights Shares”) at the subscription
price of HK$0.06 each and on the basis of one Rights Share
for every two shares held by the qualifying shareholders
or (ii) approximately HK$31.9 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB27.3 million) before expenses by way of a
rights issue of 531,845,000 Rights Shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.06 each and on the basis of one Rights Share
for every two shares held by the qualifying shareholders.
The rights issue is not underwritten and will not be
extended to the non-qualifying shareholder(s) (if any). The
estimated net proceeds of the right issue, if fully subscribed,
will be up to approximately HK$24.5 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB20.9 million) or approximately HK$30.1
million (equivalent to approximately RMB25.7 million),
respectively. The Company currently intends to use the net
proceeds from the right issue for the Company’s general
working capital purpose.

Further details of this transaction are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated on 13 March 2019.
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35.

R-Z—-N\E+-_A=+—8 S TEE
M- HEEQRIFMANESEROFRA
RI(EF semErtEs NZEREFS

S0% I ¥ AR ESIE) HERA
EWE AEBETLTARE &S
B BEAERRRFERES SR E
A EREH AN REE266,000T (ZF—H4F
AR #262,0007T) °

REHEREE

ATE—NE=A+=0  KARFEZ)
REERBRRSHEEMQ KRR M EE —
(M E R EEZE - UE=FR0.0678TTH
REEE - @AM 5 =8 17439,080,000
% #E B% A% 5 - LA E & & % £926,300,000
BT (HE R4 A R%22,500,0007T) (3
BREXAD  (WREeERBRRTHEM
(2) IR At 2 2% — (1) AR A AR AR 10 | B -
NG ROGETLHRERE  BAREKS
3\ B 77531,845,0008% #ft B% f% 19 © A &
£ 5 % 4931,900,0003 T (HE B R 4 A
R #27,300,00070) (0 Bx F 32 A1) o # %
TEBHE NETEEREETEERK
B(NA)  WMEBERE Gt H&m
SRBFEXEZ KD R4 24,500,000
BT (FEE R4 A R #20,900,0007T) =
#4 /30,100,000 T(HHE R HARE
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

36. AR A B RO &

COMPANY
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FrT AR FoT
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries & E W B AT 3,131 3,131
Amounts due from subsidiaries i I NGIE /S 31,303 27,633
34,434 30,764
Current Assets REBEE
Prepayments TET R IB 238 194
Other receivable E b e U BR 3k 16 -
Financial assets at fair value through  ZAREFABZZ S/
profit or loss BE 237 305
Bank balances and cash WITHEB LIRS 2,943 308
3,434 807
Current Liabilities REBEE
Other payables H b FE T BR K 744 2,037
Amounts due to directors BT EEHIE 536 325
Amount due to immediate holding e B ZERARIRIA
company 12 "
Borrowings - 13,044 1,142
14,336 3,515
Net Current Liabilities mEAEFHE (10,902) (2,708)
Total Assets less Current Liabilities LEERASARGE 23,532 28,056
Capital and Reserves EXR#E
Share capital (Note 25) A& A (B £ 25) 8,661 8,551
Reserves (Note) & (A aE) (24,079) (21,127)
Total Equity =B (15,418) (12,576)
Non-current Liability ERBEE
Borrowings =P 38,950 40,632
23,532 28,056
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. & 8 Bt % Rk n 3= (&)
COMPANY (Continued)

Note: b &F -

Share Shareholder’'s Share options Accumulated

premium  contribution reserve losses Total
B 17 3% B LT BRERRB RitE B A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2017 R-—E—+&—H—H 158,608 - 31,472 (210,837) (20,757)
Loss and total comprehensive AEEBEREARTBE
expense for the year - - - (6,664) (6,664)
Shareholder’s contribution A% 3 4t 3K - 786 - - 786
Lapsed/expired of share options REFRY,/ B 8RB E - - (3,176) 3,176 -
Recognition of equity-settled share- T 52 iR 1 45 & LARR () /& H 7E
based payments 13 - - 5,508 - 5,508
At 31 December 2017 RZF—tF
+-A=+—H 158,608 786 33,804 (214,325) (21,127)
Loss and total comprehensive AFEBBREERIESE
expense for the years - - - (5,673) (5,673)
Exercise of share options REFTHEZBRE 2,837 - (936) - 1,901
Recognition of equity-settled share- T 52 i 1 45 & LA RR (9 /& E 7
based payments 13 - - 820 - 820
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+-A=+—H 161,445 786 33,688 (219,998) (24,079)
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( Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability R E5EEMA L 2 AR AT )
( Stock Code B3 155 : 8076 )

*For identification purposes only {Z{:&5]
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